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PART |

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forwardKimg statements within the meaning of Section @fithe Securities Exchange Act of
1934. Such forward-looking statements include, agnathers, those statements including the wordséetsy’ “anticipates,” “intends,”
“believes,” “may,” “will,” “should,” “continue” andsimilar language or the negative of such termstioer comparable terminology. Although
we believe that the expectations reflected in tmevérd-looking statements are reasonable, Heakh8tis actual results may differ
significantly from those projected in the forwambking statements. Factors that might cause oribom to such differences include, but are
not limited to, those discussed in the section KFactors” in Item 1A of this Annual Report on Fol®-K and elsewhere in this document. In
addition, factors that we are not currently awdreanld harm our future operating results. You ddaarefully review the risks described in
other documents HealthStream files from time tcetimith the Securities and Exchange Commission. &fewcautioned not to place undue
reliance on forward-looking statements, which spaali as of the date of this Annual Report on FA0rK. HealthStream undertakes no
obligation to publicly release any revisions to thevard-looking statements or reflect events ocuwinstances after the date of this document.

Item 1. Business
OVERVIEW AND HISTORY

HealthStream, Inc. (HealthStream or the Compangyides Internebased learning and research solutions to meetaheny, information, ar
education needs of the healthcare industry. Ounileg products are used by healthcare organizatmngeet a broad range of their training
assessment needs, while our research productsiprour customers information about patients’ exgees, workforce challenges, physician
relations, and community perceptions of their sgrsi HealthStream’s customers include healthcgi@narations, pharmaceutical and medical
device companies, and other members of the headtlhedustry. Our customer base across both lea@anidgresearch business units includes
over 2,400 healthcare organizations (predominatelite-care facilities) throughout the United States

The Company'’s flagship learning product is the estream Learning Cent@(HLC), our proprietary, Interndtased learning platform, whi
at December 31, 2008 had approximately 1,855,06€acted hospital-based subscribers. We delivecathnal and training courseware to
our customers through the HLC platform. We alsovjgi® development and delivery of education inities to, and on behalf of, pharmaceu
and medical device companies to reach hospitaleblasalthcare professionals, including physiciarsiadustry sales representatives. Our
research products were added as a result of ouisitions of Data Management & Research, Inc. (DMRYarch 2005 and The Jackson
Organization, Research Consultants, Inc. (TJO) andid 2007, which expanded our service offeringattude quality and satisfaction surve
data analyses of survey results, and other resdmasdd measurement tools focused on patients,qiuysj employees, and members of the
community.

Headquartered in Nashville, Tennessee, the Comwasyincorporated in 1990 and began providing itsrivet-based solutions in 1999 and
providing its survey and research solutions in 2008luding satellite offices in Laurel, MarylanddiFranklin, Tennessee, HealthStream had
approximately 300 full-time and 100 part-time enyges as of December 31, 2008. From an initial facutechnology-based training,
HealthStream has evolved to provide full-servickveey of education, training, research, and infation to healthcare organizations.

INDUSTRY BACKGROUND

According to the deputy director of the Nationalaike Statistics Group at the Centers for Medicare ledicaid Services (CMS), spending in
the healthcare industry reached approximately 82liBn in 2007, or 16.2 percent of the gross detieproduct. Hospital care expenditures
accounted for approximately 32 percent of the $2ln industry. Approximately 10.4 million profsionals are employed in the healthcare
segment of the domestic economy, with approximaiedymillion employed in hospitals, our target metrfor our learning and research
products.

All of the 5.3 million hospital-based healthcarefeissionals that work in the nation’s approximat00 acute-care hospitals are required by
federal mandates and accrediting bodies to comptleiteing in a number of areas. This training inlea safety training mandated by both the
Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OStAd The Joint Commission, as well as trainingatient information confidentiality
required under the Health Insurance Portability Anodountability Act (HIPAA).

In hospitals, staffing issues and personnel shegt&gve also contributed to the need for facildgdal workforce development as well as
additional competency based training. The 2007 AcaarHospital Association (AHA) Survey of Hospitaaders reported that there were
approximately 116,000 vacancies for registeredasi(BNs) in the nation’s hospitals. Moreover, agpnately 44% of hospitals indicated that
recruitment of RNs had grown more difficult in tlast year according to the same report. It is extioh that the shortage of RNs in the United
States will increase to 340,000 by the year 202Dvaitl increase at three times the current rater dive next 13 yearsHealth Affairs,
January/February, 2007). We believe that offeriaghing and education for hospital personnel isgéasingly being utilized as a retention and
recruitment incentive.
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Many healthcare professionals use continuing edutéd keep abreast of the latest developmentsreget licensing, certification, and
credentialing requirements. Continuing educati@uilments include continuing education for nure@sergency medical services personnel,
first responder personnel, radiologic personnd, @mysicians. Pharmaceutical and medical devicepamies must also provide their medical
industry sales representatives with training magdi&ir the healthcare industry and training for qeaducts. Such companies also provide
support for education and training for those aucksrthat use their products in healthcare orgdaimt

A large portion of the nation’s hospitals utilizzssearch and survey tools to gain valuable insigbtpatientsexperiences, to assess workftc
competency and engagement, to determine the stBplg/sician relations and to measure the percegtidout the hospitals in the
communities they serve. Industry-wide, interestcseasing in research, due, in part, to the CABPSonsumer Assessment of Healthcare
Providers and Systems) Hospital Survey launche@Ms in partnership with the Agency for Healthcaes®Barch and Quality (AHRQ).
According to the Deficit Reduction Act of 2005, pdals must submit data for certain required guatieasures—which for inpatients includes
the CAHPS® Hospital Survey—in order to receive the full markasket increase to their reimbursement paymees fadm CMS. Hospitals
that fail to submit this survey data will incureduction of two percentage points in the inpatieatket basket update amount for the following
federal fiscal year. We are designated as a atifendor and offer CAHP&Hospital Survey services.

Finally, the hospital industry continues to operateer intense pressure to reduce costs as a oésalluctions in government reimbursement
rates and increased focus on cost containmentstensiwith participation of patients in managecdegaiograms. In addition, hospitals, as well
as pharmaceutical and medical device companiesincento experience rising operating costs, coupligd increased pressure to measure and
report on the outcomes of the dollars spent onitrgi Our products and services are designed ta thege needs by reducing healthcare
organizations’ costs of training while improvin@faing outcomes, enhancing reporting capabiliaesl, supporting customers’ business
objectives.

HEALTHSTREAM’'S SOLUTIONS

HealthStream’s products and services are orgaiizedwo segments, 1) HealthStream Learning andedithStream Research, which
collectively help healthcare organizations meeirtbegoing training, education, information, andrggiance needs. Our objective is to better
support our healthcare organization customersadir gfforts to transform insight into action asythmeeasure and benchmark key data points for
their constituencies and then incorporate the teguo training and improvement through our leagnproducts.

HealthStream Learning

Within HealthStream Learning, we bring training attlication content together with administrative amechagement tools through our
Internet-based platforms, the HealthStream Lear@iegter® and a more streamlined version, HealthStream Exgfife§Ve offer our Internet-
based platform customers a wide array of additionatseware subscriptions. Our learning managesystém supports healthcare
administrators in configuring training to meet firecise needs of different groups of employees,ifyiod training materials, and documenti
that training has been completed. At December 82821,855,000 healthcare professionals had caattaubscriptions for our Internet-based
HLC services. Pricing for the HLC is subscripticesbd, with fees based on the number of subscribensseware provided, and other factors.
We offer training, implementation, and account nggamaent services to facilitate adoption of our platf. Fees for training are based on the
time and efforts of the personnel involved. Implata¢ion fees vary based on the size, scope, angleaity of the project.

Our Internet-based platform and our coursewardaséed in a central data center that allows awthdrsubscribers Internet access to our
services, thereby eliminating the need for onsital implementations of installed learning managarpeoducts. A significant number of our
customers that historically used our installediéay management products have transitioned tordgerriet-based platform.

Along with the Internet-based HLC, we also offealtiecare organizations full-service capabilitiexteate online courses by converting their
existing course material, self-authoring new matsrihrough our Authoring Center product, and @lett sharing these materials with other
HealthStream customers through a courseware exehdlfig also offer Authoring Pro, an upgraded progiath includes an industry leading
image library, owned by A.D.A.M., Inc., as an aduhtil subscription to this product. Pricing for $lkeeproducts is subscription based, with fees
based on the number of subscribers and level aftpation of services.

During 2008, we completed the initial developmemage of our HealthStream Competency CetgHCC) product, and began pilot
implementations with select customers. This proauilttallow us to offer our customers tools to asseompetency and performance.
Competency assessment is a requirement of hosaitdlealthcare organizations for maintaining atitagon, based on requirements from
The Joint Commission to evaluate, document, andrtggerformance competencies. We anticipate thahew product will provide an
effective means of determining which competenciessasociated with each position and evaluatingdaedmenting competency assessme
This new product is also intended to facilitate deeelopment of a custom training program of caaiesailable through the HLC that uniquely
responds to the needs identified for each employee.
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Through HealthStream Direct, we develop, manage distribute online, live, and print education dradning activities for provider-based
healthcare professionals and physicians, as welhkise education and training activities for salggresentatives. Certain of the education
activities we develop and distribute provide couitigy education credit for learners completing th€micing for these products varies based on
the size, scope, and nature of the project. Motliede activities are supported by either pharntaz@wr medical device companies.

Our strategy for HealthStream Learning is to cargigrowing our customer base of approximately 1,@85bcontracted subscribers using the
Internet-based HLC, as well as expanding penetrati@dditional courseware, tools, and other psitewl services across our customer base.
We will continue to seek opportunities to lever#igjs customer base through the deployment of phegotacal and medical device training ¢
education.

HealthStream Research

HealthStream Research complements HealthStreamibgéas product and service offerings by providingshital-based customers with
patient, physician, employee, and community survegta analyses of survey results, and other relsdrmsed measurement tools.
HealthStream Research was formed after the aciguigit TJO in March 2007, which expanded our cuginlrase and product strengths. Our
services are designed to provide thorough anatps¢provide insightful recommendations for charigegrovide benchmarking capability
using our comprehensive databases; and to prowiteutting services to identify solutions for oustamers based on their survey results.
Clients are able to access and analyze their sussts data through Insights Online, our secugb-pased reporting platform. Our survey :
research solutions focus on providing industry-legdstatistically valid data to assist our custosngith their decision making related to their
organization’s performance improvement objectivesddition to collecting and reporting data, weypde expert analysis and consulting to
help customers understand their survey resultdtendnderlying impact on their business. It is witls insight that healthcare organizations
able to develop plans for improved performance ithable to be delivered through HealthStream'snlieg solutions. Pricing for these services
is based on the survey type, delivery method, glizbe survey instrument, sample size, frequencsuofey cycles, and other factors.

During the first quarter of 2008, we launched tHeAHPS Preparation and Improvement Library as ast @inline courseware designed
specifically to address the findings as a resutiwfpatient survey research. We expect to contiowevelop additional online courseware to
support our customers’ improvement initiatives dri\oy HealthStream Research’s physician surveyrelsdindings as well as additional
courseware targeted at patient survey researcim§jad

Our strategy for HealthStream Research includetiragng to grow our customer base of approximafely00 hospitals, expand the products
and services provided to each customer, and int@éiealthStream Learning solutions to address guesearch findings. We will continue to
expand our offering of research and informationgdboat are aligned with healthcare quality inities and continuous improvement efforts.

BUSINESS COMBINATION

We acquired TJO in March 2007. For additional infation regarding this acquisition, please see Raitthe Consolidated Financial
Statements and Item 7, “Management’s Discussionfaradlysis of Financial Condition and Results of @tiens” included elsewhere in this
report.

CUSTOMERS

We provide our training, information and educatsmtutions to customers across a broad range dfeentvithin the healthcare industry,
including healthcare organizations (including gowveent entities) and pharmaceutical and medicalcdesdmpanies. Examples of customers
that have purchased or contracted for productsandces from HealthStream include: HCA, Inc., Tietiealthcare Corporation, Community
Health Systems, Inc., Lifepoint Hospitals, Inc.dént Health Services, LLC, Health Management Asgesj Inc., and Baxter Healthcare
Corporation.
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SALES AND MARKETING

We market our products and services primarily tgtoaur direct sales teams, our consultants, andaount relationship managers, who are
based at our corporate headquarters in Nashvilengssee and in our satellite offices located irdélaMaryland and Franklin, Tennessee, as
well as remote home office sales locations. As e@&@nber 31, 2008, our HealthStream Learning salésedationship management personnel
consisted of 41 employees and our HealthStreamaRagssales and consultant personnel consisted efrffoyees. Our geographically
dispersed field sales organization is divided orte team focused on selling our learning produatiseaseparate sales team focused on selling
our research products. In addition to sales prafeats, we also employ strategic account persotiralmanage our largest customer
relationships as well as account relationship marsagnd consultants who work to develop and expalationships, including contract
renewals.

We conduct a variety of marketing programs to prienoaur products and services, including produdlogs, user groups and trade shows,
online promotion and demonstrations, telemarketeigpaigns, public relations, distribution of prodsjeecific literature, direct mail and
advertising.

Over the past several years, we have hosted anaétisers’ group conference in Nashville known B Summit,” and during 2008, we
hosted this event with one conference for both tH&ateam Learning and HealthStream Research cussolve utilized this client conference
to reach out to existing and potential custometstarsiness partners, provide training and educaltiarvices, and demonstrate our new and
existing product offerings. We have marketing te&inas$ are responsible for these initiatives andaforking with and supporting our product
managers and sales teams.

OPERATIONS

We believe our ability to establish and maintainggerm customer relationships, adoption of oudpms and services, recurring sales, and
development and maintenance of new and existindyats are dependent on the strength of our opestoustomer service, product
development and maintenance, training, and othgpatiteams. As of December 31, 2008, these peesaonsisted of approximately 82
employees for Learning and approximately 220 enmg#syfor Research, of which 151 employees workediirinterviewing center. Our
Learning operations team consists of personnekagsd with customer support, implementation se@wiproduct development and
maintenance, training, and project managementR@gearch operations team consists of personnaliatsbwith phone interviewing,
distributing and processing paper-based survewimsnts, data analysis and reporting of surveylt®esand project management.

TECHNOLOGY MANAGEMENT

Our services are designed to be secure, reliabteerpandable. Our software is a combination oppetary and commercially-available
software and operating systems. This combinaticsofifvare supports acquisition and conversion ateat, hosting and management of that
content, publication of our web sites, downloadsairseware, registration, tracking of users, &parting of information for both internal and
external use. We designed our services to allown eamponent to be independently scaled by addingmercially-available hardware and a
combination of commercially-available and propnigtsoftware components.

Our network infrastructure, web sites, and sertleais deliver most of our services are hosted lgltparty providers. Our primary data center
and hosting facility is in Chicago, while a secatada center and hosting facility is located in Nal#h (with a separate vendor). Our second
hosting facility has been utilized to support praodand platform testing by customers, but we camito work to configure this location as a
backup facility. Both providers maintain our equgmin a secure environment, including multipleuregiancies in power sources and network
connections. Our providers’ hosting centers araneoted to the Internet through multiple, redundagibt-speed fiber optic circuits. Our survey
products are hosted on servers located at our kmafilennessee and Laurel, Maryland offices. Corggaarsonnel monitor all servers,
networks, and systems on a continuous basis. Tegefith our providers, we employ several levelgoferprise firewall systems to protect our
databases, customer information, and coursewamayibBackups of customer data are performed cailg dasis. Data is secured at a remote
location on a weekly basis.

COMPETITION

The healthcare education industry is highly fragraénvaries significantly in delivery methodsd., written materials, live events, satellite
broadcasts, video, CD-ROM products and online petejuand is composed of a wide variety of entitiesipeting for customers. The sheer
volume of healthcare information available to $gteontinuing education needs, rapid advances idica¢ developments, and the time
constraints that healthcare professionals face malk#icult to quickly and efficiently access tlentinuing education content most relevant to
an individual’s practice or profession. Historigalhealthcare professionals have received contineducation and training through offline
publications, such as medical journals and CD-RCdvig, by attending conferences and seminars. Iniaddother healthcare workers and
pharmaceutical and medical device manufacturetessnd internal regulatory personnel usually Hiutiieir education and training needs
through instructor-led programs from external vesdar internal training departments. While thesgrapches satisfy the ongoing education
and training requirements, they are typically goatid inconvenient. In addition, live courses dterolimited in the breadth of offerings and
not provide a method for tracking training complati The results of these
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traditional methods, both from a business and c@npé standpoint, are difficult to track and measbWyhile hospitals and health systems
occasionally survey their patients, physicians amgloyees using their own internal resources, thetige is limited since they do not typice
possess the valuable comparative benchmarkingnddth is available from independent survey reseagstdors.

In addition to the competing delivery methods dibstt above, we also have direct competitors. A remolb companies offer competitive
installed and web based learning management pretluthe healthcare industry. We also compete w@aming management system providers
such as SABA and SumTotal Systems that provide seevices to multiple industries, including heedtte. We also compete with large
medical publishers that have operating units tfffat tearning management systems that focus orthezak, including Cengage LearniadNet
Learning and Reed Elsevier GrogMC Strategies. In the survey business, we se@etition from large nationally recognized survegaarct
firms such as Press Ganey Associates, NationaldRgs€orporation, Gallup, and others. Our survesirmss also experiences direct
competition from vendors who provide survey reseaervices to other industries including Kenexa Backsight. Finally, recently we have
also seen an increase in a teaming approach betweasulting and technology entities to addresslasgale projects.

We believe our learning solutions, which includéhbproducts and services that facilitate trainiogHealthcare professionals, a wide
assortment of courseware, a mechanism for meassatigfaction or other results, and the abilityptovide all our services on a single platfc
over the Internet, provide us with a competitiveatage. In our survey research business, we leetiavlarge proprietary database of
physician survey results, technology infrastructigsigned to automate the processing of surveytsepuoprietary core survey instruments
and action plan development methodology, and oilityatn quickly deliver relevant online coursewasggeted at addressing survey related
findings provide us with a competitive advantage Wélieve that the principal competitive factorfeeting the marketing of information,
training and development services to the healthicahestry include:

. features of the HLC product, including reportinggmagement functionality, ability to manage a varatevents or modalitie:
courseware assignment, scalability, and the alidityack utilization and result

. scope and variety of Internet-based learningsmware available, including mandated content fod®SThe Joint Commission,
patient safety, and HIPAA requirements, competdrased content, as well as the ability of our custento create and host their own
wek-enabled coursewar

. scope and quality of professional services offeircluding survey execution, implementation, Benarking, training and the
expertise and technical knowledge of the custo’ employees

. competitive pricing, which supports a return oneistment when compared to other alternative delivegthods
. customer service and suppc
. effectiveness of sales and marketing efforts;
. company reputatior
Collectively, we believe these capabilities provigewith the ability to improve the quality of hiéredare by developing the people who deliver
care.
GOVERNMENT REGULATION OF THE INTERNET AND THE HEALT HCARE INDUSTRY
The Internet

The laws and regulations that govern our businkasge rapidly. The United States government angdlrernments of some states and
foreign countries have attempted to regulate dds/on the Internet. The following are some ofékielving areas of law that are relevant to
our business:

. Privacy and Security LawCurrent and proposed federal, state and foreigrapyiand security regulations and other laws restg
the collection, use, security and disclosure o§peal information could limit our ability to collemformation or use and disclose the
information in our databases or derived from otfwirces to generate revenues. It may be costippgtement security or other
measures designed to comply with any new legisiatior example, the American Recovery and ReinvesstiAct of 2009 (the
“ARRA") has expanded the application of certain WAPprivacy and security requirements to apply dilketo us as a business
associate of our custome

. Encryption LawsMany copyright owner associations have lobbiedf¢ideral government for laws requiring copyrighteatenials
transmitted over the Internet to be digitally emted in order to track rights and prevent unautteatiuse of copyrighted materials. If
these laws are adopted, we may incur substantss$ ¢o comply with these requirements or changeviinewe do busines
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. Content RegulatiorBoth foreign and domestic governments have adagedproposed laws governing the content of mat
transmitted over the Internet. These include laalating to obscenity, indecency, libel and defaoratWe could be liable if content
delivered by us violates these regulatic

. Information Security Accountability RegulaticThe ARRA provides that the U.S. Department of Healtd Human Service*HHS")
must issue regulations requiring covered entittagport certain security breaches to individuéfiscéed by the breach and, in some
cases, to HHS or to the public via website. Thioreéng obligation will apply broadly to breachesdlving unsecured protected hei
information. Congress has considered bills thatld/oequire companies to engage independent thiibgao audit the companies’
computer information security. In addition, we atbject to certain state laws that relate to pyivarcthe reporting of security breacl
that are more restrictive than the requirements®AARA. For example, California has enacted liadiisn requiring disclosure of
security breaches involving personal informatiod aredical information. We may incur costs to compith these security
requirements. Because many of these laws are ndwhare is little guidance related to many of thases, it is difficult to estimate tt
cost of our compliance with these laws. If the Campis required to make a public announcement déggua breach of security or if
one of the Company’s customers is required to nageblic announcement in connection with a bredaeourity by the Company,
the Compan’s business could be negatively impac

. Sales and Use TaThrough December 31, 2008, we collected salespusther taxes on taxable transactions in all stetevhich we
have employees or have a significant level of sat¢iwity. While HealthStream expects that thisrapgh is appropriate, other state
foreign jurisdictions may seek to impose tax cdltatobligations on companies like us that engageniline commerce. If they do,
these obligations could limit the growth of elediimcommerce in general and limit our ability t@firfrom the sale of our services
over the Interne!

Laws and regulations directly applicable to e-comuaeand Internet communications are becoming maegtent. Congress continues
considering laws regarding Internet taxation. Tieainic nature of this regulatory environment insesathe uncertainty regarding the
marketplace impact of such regulation. The enactrokany additional laws or regulations may inceeasr cost of conducting business or
otherwise harm our business, financial conditiod eperating results.

Regulation of Education, Training and Other Servics for Healthcare Professionals

Occupational Safety and Health Administration (O$HPSHA regulations require employers to provide frajrto employees to minimize the
risk of injury from various potential workplace tzads. Employers in the healthcare industry areireduo provide training with respect to
various topics, including blood borne pathogensosxpe control, laboratory safety and tuberculo#fisation control. OSHA regulations requ
employers to keep records of their employees’ cetigui of training with respect to these workplaegdrds.

The Joint CommissioiThe Joint Commission mandates that employers iméadthcare industry provide certain workplace tyadad patient
interaction training to employees. Training reqdibsy The Joint Commission may include programsndection control, patient bill of rights,
radiation safety, and incident reporting. Healtkaarganizations are required to provide and doctitnaiming on these topics to receive
accreditation from The Joint Commission. In additidhe Joint Commission imposes continuing edunagguirements on physicians that
relate to each physician’s specific staff appointtae

Health Insurance Portability and Accountability AetIPAA). HIPAA regulations require certain organizationgluding most healthcare
providers and health plans, to adopt safeguardsdety the use and disclosure of health-relateatinétion. HIPAA regulations also require
organizations that maintain or transmit health imfation electronically in connection with certaiartsactions to provide reasonable and
appropriate safeguards to protect the privacygiitieand confidentiality of individually identiflale healthcare information. These healthcare
organizations are required to establish, maintathfovide training with regard to their policiesdgprocedures for protecting the integrity and
confidentiality of individually identifiable healtare information. Healthcare organizations areiredguo document training on these topics to
support their compliance. Recently the ARRA expaiitie application of certain HIPAA privacy and séiyurequirements to apply directly to
companies (known as business associates) thatgreervices to certain healthcare organizations.

Continuing Nursing Education (CNBE3tate nurse practice laws are usually the sourestbiority for establishing the state board of mgs
requirements. The state board of nursing estaldifeestate’s CNE requirements for professionadesirCNE credits are provided through
accredited providers that have been approved bjtierican Nurses Credentialing Center (ANCC) Consiois on Accreditation and/or the
state board of nursing. CNE requirements vary wifleim state to state. Thirty-two states requiigiseered nurses to certify that they have
accumulated a minimum number of CNE credits in otdenaintain their licenses. In some states, tN& @aquirement only applies to re-
licensure of advance practice nurses, or additi@NiESs may be required of this category of nursegjuted CNE ranges from 12 to 50 credits
annually, with reporting generally on a bi-annuasis. Board certifications (e.g., CNOR — certifioatof perioperative nursing) also require
CNE credits, with certain percentages requirecpicsic categories based on the certification tyfve. are an accredited provider of CNE by
the ANCC.
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Continuing Medical Education (CMEgtate licensing boards, professional organizatiordsemployers require physicians to certify thayth
have accumulated a minimum number of continuingioa@ducation hours to maintain their licenseméally, each state’s medical practice
laws authorize the state’s board of medicine tal#isth and track CME requirements. Forty-eightestaedical licensing boards currently have
CME requirements, as well as Puerto Rico, Guamtlaad.S. Virgin Islands. The number of CME howguired by each state ranges frorn
to 50 hours per year. Other sources of CME requérémare state medical societies and practiceapebbards. The failure to obtain the
requisite amount and type of CME could result in-nenewal of the physicias’license to practice medicine and/or membershriredical o
practice specialty society. The American Medicatd@ation’s (AMA) Physician Recognition Award céidate (PRA) is widely accepted as
proof of participation in CME. The AMA classifiesmtinuing medical education activities as eithete@ary 1, which includes formal CME
activities, or Category 2, which includes most mfal activities. Sponsors want to designate CMEivgiets for AMA PRA Category 1 Credit™
because this has become the benchmark for qualftyrinally organized educational activities. Mogeacies nationwide that require CME
participation specifAMA PRA Category 1 Credit™Only institutions and organizations accreditegrovide CME can designate an activity
for AMA PRA Category 1 Credit™The Accreditation Council for Continuing Medidadiucation (ACCME), is responsible for awarding
accreditation status to state medical societieslicakschools, and other institutions and orgaionstthat provide CME activities for a natiol
audience of physicians. Only institutions and oigations are accredited. The ACCME and state médarzeties do not accredit or approve
individual activities. State medical societies, @ieg under the aegis of the ACCME, accredit tnsitins and organizations that provide CME
activities primarily for physicians within the stabr bordering states. We are an accredited proeideME by the ACCME.

Consumer Assessment of Healthcare Providers andr8gCAHPS)CMS has partnered with AHRQ to develop a standatigurvey
instrument and data collection methodology for meiag patients’ perspectives on hospital care. ifitent of the survey is to produce
comparable data on the patients’ perspectiveddw alonsumer-based comparisons between hospitis,iacentives to drive hospitals to
improve their quality of care, and increase thagparency of hospital reporting. According to thefiEit Reduction Act of 2005, hospitals m
submit data for certain required quality measuresielfor inpatients includes the CAHP$ospital Survey—in order to receive the full
market basket increase to their reimbursement payrages from CMS. While hospital participatiorviduntary, hospitals that fail to submit
this survey data will incur a reduction of two pamtage points in the inpatient market basket upaiateunt for the following federal fiscal ye
We have received certified vendor designation,wificcontinue to offer CAHP® Hospital Survey services.

Allied Disciplines.Various allied health professionals are requirediitain continuing education to maintain their tises. For example,
emergency medical services personnel may be reftgracquire up to 20 continuing education hoursyear, all or a portion of which can be
fulfilled online. These requirements vary by statel depend on the classification of the employee.

Other Continuing EducatioWe are also an accredited provider of continuingcation and continuing pharmacy education by th&o8iition
of Surgical Technologists, Inc. (AST) and the Aditation Council for Pharmacy Education (ACPE) peadively.

Regulation of Educational Program Sponsorship and @port

The Office of Inspector General (OIG) issued Comanptie Program Guidance for Pharmaceutical Manufactun April 2003 and issued
Compliance Program Guidance for the Durable Medizplipment, Prosthetics, Orthotics, and Supply stiguin July 1999 (collectively, the
Guidelines). These documents include guidelinegedlto continuing educational activities suppokiggharmaceutical and medical device
companies. The Guidelines already have and maynuento affect the type and extent of commerciaglsut we receive for our continuing
education activities. The trade associations ferpharmaceutical and medical device industries fPhRNnd AdvaMed, respectively) have a
promulgated their own codes of ethics. In Janu@f92the PhRMA code of ethics was updated, and RMeebhas announced changes to its
code of ethics that will be effective in July 200%iese changes placed further restrictions onnfeedctions between industry and health care
professionals. The AMA has established its own aafdsthics regarding Gifts to Physicians from Intdyi$o provide standards of conduct for
the medical profession. The Company follows theswnd guidelines provided by ACCME, ANCC, and otioatinuing education accreditil
bodies to ensure that its continuing education ganmgning is free from commercial bias and consistétit the Guidelines.

The U.S. Food and Drug Administration and the Fedeal Trade Commission

Current FDA and FTC rules and enforcement actionsragulatory policies or those that the FDA or fi&C may develop in the future could
have a material adverse effect on our ability wvjte existing or future applications or service®tr end users or obtain the necessary
corporate sponsorship to do so. The FDA and the i€bGlate the form, content and dissemination leéliag, advertising and promotional
materials, including direct-to-consumer prescriptilvug and medical device advertising, preparedbfor, pharmaceutical, biotechnology or
medical device companies. The FTC regulates owectlunter drug advertising and, in some cases,cakdievice advertising. Generally,
regulated companies must limit their advertising promotional materials to discussions of the Flpfraved claims and, in limited
circumstances, to a limited number of claims ngtraped by the FDA. Therefore, any information thegmotes the use of pharmaceutical or
medical device products that is presented withseavices is subject to the full array of the FDAI &TC requirements and enforcement
actions. We believe that banner advertisementsisspship links and any educational programs tiet la
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independent editorial control that we may preséitti wur services could be subject to FDA or FTCutation. While the FDA and the FTC
place the principal burden of compliance with atiserg and promotional regulations on the advertigehe FDA or FTC finds that any
regulated information presented with our servidetates FDA or FTC regulations, they may take raguly action against us or the advertiser
or sponsor of that information. In addition, theABay adopt new regulatory policies that more fightgulate the format and content of
promotional information on the Internet.

Other Government Regulations

In December 2007, the SEC issued new rules forlsmalporting companies, expanding the number ofgamies that qualify for its scaled
disclosure requirements. The Company continuesaioitor these regulations and rulings to ensurewvleaappropriately allocate our resources
to maintain compliance with all applicable reguwdas. Currently, our compliance with Section 404hef Sarbanes-Oxley Act is applicable for
calendar year 2009.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY AND OTHER PROPRIETARY RIGHTS

To protect our proprietary rights, we rely gengralh copyright, trademark and trade secret lawsfidentiality agreements and procedures
with employees, consultants and other third partiesnse agreements with consultants, vendorsastmers, and control access to our
software, documentation and other proprietary imfation. We own Federal trademark and service neglstrations for the marks
“HEALTHSTREAM”, “HOSPITAL DIRECT”, “OR PROTOCOL", ad “QUALITY CHECK.”

The courseware that we license to our custometevsloped through a combination of license agreésngith publishers or authors,
assignments and work-for-hire arrangements wittd tharties, and development by employees. We requiblishers, authors and other third
parties to represent and warrant that their cordeas not infringe on or misappropriate any thiedty intellectual property rights and that they
have the right to provide their content and haviaioled all third-party consents necessary to d@smw.publishers, authors and other third
parties also agree to indemnify us against celiaility we might sustain due to the content thgegvide.

If a third party asserts a claim that we have infeid their patents or other intellectual propesty,may be required to redesign our products or
enter into royalty or licensing agreements. In &ddj we license technologies from third partiesif@orporation into our services. Royalty ¢
licensing agreements with these third parties maybe available on terms acceptable to us, iflafdditionally, the steps we have taken to
protect our intellectual property and proprietaghts may not be adequate. Third parties may ig&iar misappropriate our intellectual
property. Competitors may also independently dgvétahnologies that are substantially equivalersuperior to the technologies we employ
in our products or services. If we fail to proteatr proprietary rights adequately, our competitargld offer similar services, potentially
significantly harming our competitive position atlelcreasing our revenues.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

The Company files reports with the SEC, includingw@al reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports om#&0-Q and other reports from time to
time. The public may read and copy any materialdilavith the SEC at the SEC’s Public Referenceiat 100 F Street, NE, Washington,
DC 20549. The public may obtain information on tiperation of the Public Reference Room by callmgy $EC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The
Company is an electronic filer and the SEC maistaim Internet site at http://www.sec.gov that cmstéhe reports, proxy and information
statements, and other information filed electroilyjc®ur website address is www.healthstream.coeas$ note that our website address is
provided as an inactive textual reference only.iéke available free of charge through our webgig annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly
reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form & all amendments to those reports as soon amiaayg practicable after such material is
electronically filed with or furnished to the SEThe information provided on our website is not pdrthis report, and is therefore not
incorporated by reference unless such informasarthierwise specifically referenced elsewhere imrigport.

OUR EMPLOYEES

As of December 31, 2008, we employed approxima&8y full-time and 100 part-time persons, includapgproximately 150 employees in our
interviewing center. Our success will depend igégpart upon our ability to attract and retain digal employees. We face competition in this
regard from other companies, but we believe thama@tain good relations with our employees. Werartesubject to any collective
bargaining agreements.
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The following is a brief summary of the businesparience of each of the executive officers of tlen@any. Officers of the Company are
elected by the Board of Directors and serve aptbasure of the Board of Directors. The followiaple sets forth certain information regarc
the executive officers of the Company:

Name Age  Position

Robert A. Frist, Jr 41  Chief Executive Officer, President and Chairmathef Board of Director
Jeffrey S. Doste 44  Senior Vice President and Chief Technology Off

Gerard M. Hayden, J 54  Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi

Arthur E. Newmar 60 Executive Vice Presidel

J. Edward Pearsc 46  Senior Vice President and President of HealthStrieesearc|™

Kevin P. C'Hara 39  Senior Vice President, General Counsel, and Comggigfficer

Robert A. Frist, Jr., one of our co-founders, lexvead as our chief executive officer and chairmite board of directors since 1990 and
president since 2001. He graduated witBachelor of Science in business with concentatio finance, economics and marketing from Tri
University.

Jeffrey S. Doster joined the Company in May 2008exsor vice president and chief technology offitgom November 2006 to May 2008, he
served as principal at The Altus Group LLC, a basgconsulting company. From March 2005 to Oct@bé6, he served as senior vice
president and chief technology officer at The Shbpome Network, LLC, a television shopping compdfypm October 2000 to April 2004,
he served as senior vice president of informagahmology at New Roads, Inc., a provider of fulfidint and other services to retailers. He
earned undergraduate degrees in both EconomicBusidess Administration from Towson University veall as a Master of Business
Administration from Loyola College, in Maryland.

Gerard M. Hayden, Jr. joined the Company as se#derpresident and chief financial officer in Ma@B. From April 2007 to May 2008, he
served as executive vice president and chief filmhoéficer of MedAvant Healthcare Solutions, a liegare transaction processing company.
From January 2005 to April 2007, he was a consuftarvarious healthcare, technology and otherress ventures. From November 2001 to
January 2005, he served as chief financial officePrivate Business, Inc., a company offering neéilg and software solutions to regional
community banks in the United States. He earnedch@&or of Arts from the University of Notre Dam&dea Master of Science from
Northeastern University. Mr. Hayden served on tben@any's Board of Directors and was a member of the AGdimmittee from September
2006 to May 2008.

Arthur E. Newman joined the Company in January 2@0@ is currently our Executive Vice Presidenevibusly he served as our chief
financial officer and senior vice president fronmdary 2000 to May 2006. He holds a Bachelor of i8@dan chemistry from the University of
Miami and a Master of Business Administration frRutgers University.

J. Edward Pearson joined the company in June 2886érgor vice president, responsible for our suargyresearch business and was named
president of HealthStream Reseaftturing 2007. From June 2003 to June 2006, he serv@desident and chief executive officer of
DigiScript, an Internet-based training and commatian solutions provider for the life sciences igtly. He earned a Bachelor of Business
Administration in accounting from Middle Tennes$&tate University.

Kevin P. O’Hara joined the company in 2002, and p@snoted to senior vice president and general galun February 2007. He assumed
compliance officer responsibilities during AugudZ. He previously served as vice president foicttrapany. He earned a Bachelor of Arts
degree and a J.D. from Vanderbilt University.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

We believe that the risks and uncertainties desdrifelow and elsewhere in this document are tmeipal material risks facing the Company
as of the date of this report. In the future, weylb@acome subject to additional risks that are notemtly known to us. Our business, financial
condition or results of operations could be matigreedversely affected by any of the following ris&nd by any unknown risks. The trading
price of our common stock could decline due to afthe following risks or any unknown risks.

Risks related to our business model.

We may be unable to effectively execute our grosatitategy which could have an adverse effect on business and competitive position in
the industry.

Our business strategy includes increasing our nhatkare and presence through sales to new custpauglitional sales to existing customers,
introductions of new products and services, anchtaaiing strong relationships with our existing tomsers. Some of the risks that we may
encounter in executing our growth strategy include:

. expenses, delays and difficulties of identifyingl amtegrating new products or services into ous#xg organization
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. inability to leverage our operational and finanggstems sufficiently to support our grow
. inability to generate sufficient revenue from nesgduicts to offset investment cos
. inability to effectively identify, manage and exjplexisting and emerging market opportuniti
. inability to maintain our existing customer relatéhips;
. increased competition from new and existing congestj anc
. lengthy sales cycles, or customers delaying pumsgatecisions due to economic conditio
If any of these risks are realized, our businessdcsuffer.
We may be unable to effectively identify, completéntegrate the operations of future acquisitions.

As part of our growth strategy, we actively revipassible acquisitions that complement or enhancdosiness. We may not be able to
identify, complete or integrate the operationsutfife acquisitions. In addition, if we finance aisifions by issuing equity securities, our
existing shareholders may be diluted which coufdcfthe market price of our stock. As a resultyéf fail to properly evaluate and execute
acquisitions and investments, our business prospeay be seriously harmed. Some of the risks tleatay encounter in implementing our
acquisition strategy include:

. expenses, delays or difficulties in identifying antegrating acquired companies into our organizg

. inability to retain personnel associated with astjigins;

. diversion of manageme’'s attention from daily operations; a

. inability to generate sufficient revenues, profétad cash flows from acquisitions to offset ourgistynent cost:
Revenue recognition for certain products and seescds dependent upon customer scheduling and acueg.

As revenues from our subscription business contiauecrease, a larger portion of our revenues bélpredictable; however, quarterly
performance may be more subject to fluctuations. lralthStream Research products and serviceygically contracted by healthcare
organizations for multi-year terms, but the frequgrsample size, and timing of survey cycles cay fram quarter to quarter and year to year.
Also, other project-based products, such as lientsy certain content development, and professimraices, are subject to the customers’
involvement in the provision of the product. Thegmidude of these project-based service contractsvagy widely from quarter to quarter and
year to year, and thus may affect our ability toumately predict quarterly and annual financiaffpenance

Our sales cycle is lengthy and can vary widely.

The period from our initial contact with a potehtastomer and the first purchase of our solutigitbe customer typically ranges from three to
nine months, and in some cases has extended muhbbrfurhe range in the sales cycle can be impantadultiple factors, including an
increasing trend towards more formal request foppsals (RFP) processes and more competition wathirindustry, as well as formal budget
timelines which impact timing of purchases by taigestomers. As a result of these factors, we loaaelimited ability to forecast the timing
and type of initial sales. This, in turn, makemire difficult to predict quarterly and annual fireéal performance.

We may not be able to maintain our competitive piosi against current and potential competitors, esjally those with significantly greater
financial, technical, marketing, and other resourse

Several of our competitors and many potential cditggs have longer operating histories and sigaifity greater financial, technical,
marketing, and other resources than we do. We eneodirect competition from both large and smdéa&ning companies and other
companies focused on training and continuing edutat the healthcare industry. We also face coitipetfrom larger survey and research
companies. Given the profile and growth of the thealre industry and the growing need for educati@ining, research, and information, it is
likely that additional competitors will emerge. Welieve we maintain a competitive advantage agaimstompetitors by virtue of the
comprehensive array of products and services ver.dffour competitors were to offer a completie@mning solution to the healthcare indus
our competitive position could be adversely affdcfEhese companies may be able to respond morklygtian we can to new or changing
opportunities, technologies, standards or custoegrirements. Further, most of our customer agre&rae for terms ranging from one to
three years, with no obligation to renew. The stemrns of these agreements enable customers tdsbifie of our competitors.

10




Table of Contents

Growth in courseware subscription revenues deperndgart, on our obtaining proper distribution rigts from our content partners.

Most of our agreements with content providers arerfitial terms of two to three years. The conteattners may choose not to renew their
agreements with us or may terminate the agreeneaniy if we do not fulfill our contractual obligatis. If a significant number of our content
providers terminate or fail to renew their agreetaavith us on acceptable terms, it could resuét reduction in the number of courses we are
able to distribute, causing decreased revenuest Masir agreements with our content partners areexclusive, and our competitors offer, or
could offer, training and continuing education @ritthat is similar to or the same as ours. If {ghielrs and authors, including our current
content partners, offer information to users or@mpetitors on more favorable terms than thoseredf to us, or increase our license fees, our
competitive position and our profit margins andgmects could be harmed. In addition, the failur@brycontent partners to deliver highality
content and to revise their content in responsesér demand and evolving healthcare advances emdistcould result in customer
dissatisfaction and inhibit our ability to attraetd retain subscribers of our courseware offerings.

We may not be able to develop enhancements to sistiag products and services or achieve widespraadeptance of new features or keep
pace with technological developmen

Our revenue growth is expected to be generatedghreales to new customers as well as increaslag shadditional courseware
subscriptions and other products and servicesisieg customers. Our identification of additiof@htures, content, products and services may
not result in timely development of complementamyducts. In addition, the success of certain nevdpets and services may be dependent on
continued growth in our base of Internet-basedarnsts or adoption of new methodology by new custsnigecause healthcare training
continues to change and evolve, we may be unaldedorately predict and develop features, contetitoeher products to address these needs
of the healthcare industry. If new products, feasuor content are not accepted by new or existisgpmers, we may not be able to recover the
cost of this development and our business will éerfed. Continued growth of our Internet-based eustgopulation is dependent on our
ability to continue to provide relevant productsl @ervices in a timely manner. The success of osinless will depend on our ability to
continue providing our products and services a$ ageénhancing our courseware, product and seofiegngs that address the needs of
healthcare organizations.

Our product and service offerings include third pgrtechnology, the loss of which could materiallatm our business. Errors in third party
software or our inability to license this softwaie the future could increase our costs and decrease revenues

We use some licensed third party technology commisria our products. Future licenses to this tetdgyomay not be available to us on
commercially reasonable terms, or at all. The &fsw inability to obtain or maintain any of thegmenses could result in delays in the
introduction of new products and services or cdatde us to discontinue offering portions of owarleing management or survey and research
solutions until equivalent technology, if availafieidentified, licensed and integrated. The opensof our products would be impaired if
errors occur in the third party technology or contdat we incorporate, and we may incur additiamestts to repair or replace the defective
software. It may be difficult for us to correct aasrors in third party software because the sofwsnot within our control. Accordingly, our
revenue could decrease and our costs could inciredise event of any errors in this technology.tRermore, we may become subject to legal
claims related to licensed technology based onymtdihbility, infringement of intellectual propgror other legal theories.

Financial Risks
A significant portion of our revenue is generatetbin a relatively small number of customel

We derive a substantial portion of our revenuemfeorelatively small number of customers. A terrtisraof our agreements with our
significant customers or a failure of these custane renew their contracts on favorable termsta@il, would have a material adverse effect
on our business.

A significant portion of our business is subject tenewal each year. Therefore, renewals have a gigant impact on our revenue an
operating results.

For the year ended December 31, 2008, approxim&gefyercent of our net revenues were derived frammernet-based subscription
products. Our Internet-based HLC customers havebfigation to renew their subscriptions for ourguots or services after the expiration of
the initial subscription period, and in fact, sooustomers have elected not to renew their subgmmigin addition, our customers may renew at
a lower pricing or activity level. During the yeamded December 31, 2008, we renewed 100% of theahhth C contract value up for renewal
and 91% of the subscribers which were up for reheBecause a significant portion of our customentracts have only renewed one or two
times, we do not have sufficient historical data¢ourately predict future customer renewal rades. customers’ renewal rates may decline or
fluctuate as a result of a number of factors, iditig their dissatisfaction with our service. If wee unable to renew a substantial portion of the
contracts that are up for renewal or maintain aigimg, our revenues could be adversely affectédciwwould have a material adverse affect
on our results of operations and financial positidantracts for our survey and research servigasdily range from one to three years in
length, and customers are not obligated to renew tontract with us after their contract expisésur customers do not renew their
arrangements for our services, or if their actiléyels decline, our revenue may decline and osimass will suffer.
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The timing of our revenue recognition from salestagdty is dependent upon achievement of certain mgeor performance milestones, and
our inability to accurately predict them will impa®ur operating results.

Our ability to recognize revenues is dependent gawmeral factors including the transfer of custesmacific information such as unique
subscriber IDs, which are required for us to impetcustomers on our Internet-based learning phatféccordingly, if customers do not
provide us with the specified information in a tisgnehanner, our ability to recognize revenues wdldelayed, which could adversely impact
our operating results. In addition, completion andeptance by our customers of developed contelnt@irseware must be achieved, survey
responses must be received and tabulated, arzhtiti of courseware is required in connection sithscription Internet-based learning
products for us to recognize revenues. As we nabede, while we have been successful in achievwiag/lp in our subscription based
revenues, our project-based revenues are likdhe tsubject to significant fluctuations.

Because we recognize revenue from subscriptionsdiar products and services over the term of the sediption period, downturns o
upturns in sales may not be immediately reflectacour operating results.

We recognize approximately 55% of our revenue foustomers monthly over the terms of their subsiompagreements, which have initial
contract terms ranging from one to three yearbpalgh terms can range from less than one to updo/éars. As a result, much of the revenue
we report in each quarter is related to subscripdigreements entered into during previous quai@assequently, a decline in new or renewed
subscriptions in any one quarter will not necesgae fully reflected in the revenue in that quadad will negatively affect our revenue in
future quarters. In addition, we may be unabledjast our cost structure to reflect these reduesdmues. Accordingly, the effect of significi
downturns in sales and market acceptance of oulugts and services may not be fully reflected inresults of operations until future perio
Additionally, our subscription model also makedifficult for us to rapidly increase our revenueaihgh additional sales in any period, as
revenue from new customers must be recognizedtbeeapplicable subscription term.

We may not be able to meet our strategic busindgeaives unless we obtain additional financing, iwsh may not be available to us on
favorable terms or at all

Our current cash reserves, revolving credit facidind results of operations are expected to Hemuft to meet our cash requirements through
at least 2009. However, we may need to raise additifunds in order to:

. develop new, or enhance existing, services or s

. respond to competitive pressur

. finance working capital requirements;

. acquire complementary businesses, technology, sbatgroducts

At December 31, 2008, we had approximately $4.lioniin cash, cash equivalents, restricted casthralated interest receivable. We also
have up to $15.0 million of availability under aoédving credit facility, subject to certain covensrwhich is up for renewal in July 2009. We
expect to incur up to $3.5 million of capital exgéores, software feature enhancements and copteahases during 2009 to support our
business. In September 2007 we authorized a ségekcehase plan, with approval to acquire up to $8lllon of our common stock and we
completed that stock repurchase plan during 2008 ctvitinue to actively review possible businessiitipns that would complement our
products and services. We may not have adequdteacasinvestments or availability under our revadyvcredit facility to consummate one or
more acquisitions. The credit markets have beeerépcing extreme volatility and disruption, and eaanot assure you that if we need
additional financing that it will be available ogrins favorable to us, or at all. If adequate fueng@snot available or are not available on
acceptable terms, our ability to fund expansioke @advantage of available opportunities, developnirance services or products or otherwise
respond to competitive pressures would be sigmiflgdimited. If we raise additional funds by isegiequity or convertible debt securities, the
percentage ownership of our existing shareholdens Ie reduced.

We have significant goodwill and identifiable intgible assets recorded on our balance sheet that iImagubject to impairment losses that
would reduce our reported assets and earnings.

As of December 31, 2008, our balance sheet inclgdedwill of $21.1 million and identifiable intaride assets of $4.7 million. Economic,
financial, legal, regulatory, competitive, contrzad and other factors may affect the carrying galfigoodwill and identifiable intangible ass
in the future. If any of these factors impair tfeue of these assets, accounting rules require tegltice their carrying value and report an
impairment charge, which would reduce our repoasskts and earnings in the period an impairmeet&gnized.

12




Table of Contents

Our stock price is likely to be volatile.

The market price of our common stock is likely toumlatile and could be subject to significant flations in response to factors such as the
following, many of which are beyond our controlagierly variations in our operating results; opgtesults that vary from the expectations
of securities analysts and investors; changespeaations as to our future financial performamtenges in market valuations of other online
service companies; future sales of our common s&iokk market price and volume fluctuations; gahpolitical and economic conditions,
such as a recession or war or terrorist attacksterest rate or currency rate fluctuations; arieptisk factors described in this Annual Report
on Form 10-K. Moreover, our stock is thinly tradadd we have a relatively small public float. Théseors may adversely affect the market
price of our common stock. In addition, the maikeétes for stocks of many Internet related andrietdgy companies have historically
experienced significant price fluctuations thasiime cases appear to bear no relationship to #ratipy performance of these companies. A
significant decline in our stock price could beimpairment indicator for goodwill and other longdid assets, which could result in an
impairment charge and reduction of our reporteétassrying values.

The current uncertain economic environment may haaenegative impact on our customers and our compavhjich could have a
significant impact on our revenue, operating ressilénd financial condition.

It is difficult to predict the full magnitude andidation of the current uncertain economic environt@and its related impact on our customers,
suppliers and our company. For example, our customay experience fluctuations or declines in thasiness which, in turn, could have an
impact on us. The potential negative effects onGbmpany include, but are not limited to, reductiamour renewal and revenue growth rates,
pressure to reduce our prices, shorter contratisteaind potential write-offs or delays in paymédrasn customers which would increase our
accounts receivable resulting in a deteriorationwfcash flow and working capital position. We tome to monitor general economic
conditions, however, and depending on the sevanti/or duration of any economic downturn, theseuairstances could have a material
adverse effect on our revenue, results of operatom financial condition.

Risks Related to Sales, Marketing and Competition
We continue to refine our pricing for our productand services and cannot predict whether the ongoatgnges will be accepted.

Over the past few years we have implemented segbasiges and continue to make changes in our grasid our product and service
offerings to increase revenue and to meet the nefedisr customers. We cannot predict whether owect pricing and products and services,
or any ongoing refinements we make will be acceptedur existing customer base or by prospectiwtarners. If our customers and potential
customers decide not to accept our current oréupricing or product and service offerings, it @bbhave a material adverse effect on our
business.

Risks Related to Operations
Any failure to successfully release and deploy tiew version of our Insights Online reporting platfm could harm our business

A new version of our Insights Online reporting fdam will be released during 2009. It is common fiemw releases of software or feature
enhancements to contain defects or errors thatiscevered during the period immediately followihg release. Although we rigorously test
and apply quality assurance processes to our preguor to their release, we cannot assure thalesécts or errors are identified. If serious
defects or errors are detected after the releageafew version of our Insights Online reportiggtem, we may experience incremental costs
to correct such errors and experience delays isitianing our customer base to the new versiotis Tould also result in the potential loss of
customers, lower revenues, and increased expemBiet, could harm our business.

We may be unable to adequately develop our systpnagesses and support in a manner that will enabketo meet the demand for our
services

We have provided our online products and servioesesl 999 and continue to develop our ability tovile our courseware and learning
management systems on both a subscription andatttimsal basis over the Internet. Our future sused depend on our ability to effectively
develop the infrastructure, including additionatdwiare and software, and implement the servicetjding customer support, necessary to
meet the demand for our services. Our inabilityrfriime to time to successfully develop the necgssgstems and implement the necessary
services on a timely basis has resulted in ouoousts experiencing some delays or interruptiorikéir service. Such delays or interruptions
may cause customers to become dissatisfied witlsemice and move to competing providers of traddi and online training and education
services. If this happens, our revenues could beradly affected, which would have a material askwesffect on our financial condition.

Our business operations could be significantly digpted if we lose members of, or fail to integrateyr management team.

Our future performance is substantially dependerthe continued services of our management teanoandbility to retain and motivate
them. The loss of the services of any of our offica senior managers could harm our businesseasay not be able to find suitable
replacements. We do not have employment agreeméhtsiny of our key personnel, other than our ckeecutive officer, and we do not
maintain any “key person” life insurance policies.
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We may not be able to hire and retain a sufficienimber of qualified employees and, as a result,mway not be able to grow as we expec
maintain the quality of our services.

Our future success will depend on our ability toeat, train, motivate, and retain other highlylleki technical, managerial, marketing, custc
support, and survey personnel. Competition foradepersonnel is intense, especially for develgpeeb designers and sales personnel, ar
may be unable to successfully attract sufficieqthalified personnel. We have experienced difficirityhe past hiring qualified personnel in a
timely manner for these positions. The pool of digal technical personnel, in particular, is lindten Nashville, Tennessee, where our
headquarters are located. Our interviewing cestéydated in Laurel, Maryland, and we may expeeedifficulty in maintaining and recruiting
qualified individuals to perform these services. Wik also need to maintain the size of our staf6tipport our anticipated growth, without
compromising the quality of our offerings or custmservice. Our inability to locate, hire, integraind retain qualified personnel in sufficient
numbers may reduce the quality of our services.

We must continue to upgrade our technology infrastture, both hardware and software, to effectivehyeet demand for our services.

We must continue to obtain reasonably priced, corniaky available hardware and continue to enhaafevare to accommodate the incre:
use of our platform and increased courseware ifiloary. In order to make timely decisions aboatdware and software enhancements, we
must be able to accurately forecast the growttemahd for our services. This growth in demand forservices is difficult to forecast and the
potential audience for our services is large. Ifase unable to increase the data storage and gingesapacity of our systems at least as fast as
the growth in demand, our customers may encourdeyd or disruptions in their service. Unscheddedntime could harm our business and
also could discourage current and potential custermed reduce future revenues.

Our network infrastructure and computer systems asodftware may fail.

An unexpected event like a telecommunications fajlire, earthquake, or other catastrophic lossatnternet service providers’ facilities or
at our on-site data facility could cause the Idssritical data and prevent us from offering ouoghucts and services. Our business interruption
insurance may not adequately compensate us farddbat may occur. In addition, we rely on thirdtiea to securely store our archived data,
house our web server and network systems and counség the Internet. While our service providesséaplanned for certain contingencies,
the failure by any of these third parties to previlese services satisfactorily and our inabibtfind suitable replacements would impair our
ability to access archives and operate our systemdsoftware.

We may lose users and lose revenues if our secumigasures fail.

If the security measures that we use to protecgred information are ineffective, we may lose as#rour services, which could reduce our
revenues. We rely on security and authenticatiohrtelogy licensed from third parties. With thistieology, we perform real-time credit card
authorization and verification, as well as the gption of other selected secure customer data. &daat predict whether these security
measures could be circumvented by new technolodmatlopments. In addition, our software, databaseésservers may be vulnerable to
computer viruses, physical or electronic attackd similar disruptions. We may need to spend sigaift resources to protect against security
breaches or to alleviate problems caused by araches. We cannot assure that we can prevent alligelosreaches.

Risks Related to Government Regulation, Content anthtellectual Property
Government regulation may require us to change thiay we do business.

The laws and regulations that govern our businkasge rapidly. The United States government angdlrernments of states and foreign
countries have attempted to regulate activitietherinternet. Evolving areas of law that are reféta our business include privacy and sec
laws, proposed encryption laws, content regulafioioymation security accountability regulationdaseles and use tax laws and regulations.
Because of this rapidly evolving and uncertain taguy environment, we cannot predict how theseslamnd regulations might affect our
business. These uncertainties make it difficutieure compliance with the laws and regulation®eguomg the Internet. These laws and
regulations could harm us by subjecting us to liighor forcing us to change how we do businessaddition, certain laws mandate that our
customers contractually require us to protect tinapy and security of certain personal and hedthted information. If we fail to abide by
these required contractual provisions, our custermey terminate their contracts with us. In additibhe ARRA recently expanded the
application of certain of the HIPAA privacy and ggty regulations to apply directly to businessaasates including us. Violations of HIPAA
privacy and security regulations may result inlcwid criminal penalties. Further, the ARRA hag@ased these penalties and strengthened
other enforcement provisions of HIPAA, which maguk in increased enforcement activity. See “Busine- Government Regulation of the
Internet and the Healthcare Industry” for a mormplete discussion of these laws and regulations.

Our inability to maintain CMS certification to condct HCAHPS surveys may adversely affect our busees

Our survey product offerings include providing HCRS survey services to assist customers in theiptante with CMS regulations. We are
currently designated as a CMS certified vendorfterdHCAHPS survey data collection services. If are unable to maintain this certification,
we would not be able to offer our customers thigay instrument and our business may suffer.
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Any reduction or change in the regulation of contiing education and training in the healthcare indtry may adversely affect our busine

Our business model is dependent in part on reqtiaéning and continuing education for healthcanafgssionals and other healthcare workers
resulting from regulations of state and Federahaigs, state licensing boards and professionahizgtions. Any change in these regulations
that reduce the requirements for continuing edanadind training for the healthcare industry cowdd our business. In addition, a portion of
our business with pharmaceutical and medical deviaeufacturers and hospitals is predicated on loilityato maintain accreditation status
with organizations such as the ACCME, ANCC, ASTqd &CPE. The failure to maintain status as an ad@egrovider could have a
detrimental effect on our business.

Government regulations and industry standards maguce our business activity with pharmaceutical ame:dical device customers.

In April 2003, the OIG of the Department of Headild Human Services (HHS) issugdlG Compliance Program Guidance for Pharmacel
Manufacturers.” In July 1999, the OIG issued “Coiaupte Program Guidance for the Durable Medical gopgint, Prosthetics, Orthotics and
Supply Industry.” These guidelines collectivelyntiéy three areas of risks for pharmaceutical aratlital device companies and recommend
certain best practices to be included in a compégrlan designed to avoid the risk of federal Inealte program abuse. The guidance
highlighted a number of arrangements that havethential to trigger fraud and abuse violations|uding educational grants. In April 2007,
the U.S. Senate Finance Committee released a reitical of practices related to the funding ofiedtional programs by pharmaceutical
manufacturers. Congress is considering legisldtiahwould require manufacturers of drugs, deviaes, medical supplies to report to HHS
anything of value, including educational progragisen by such manufacturers to physicians. Thislation would require that HHS make
such information publicly available on the Internet

The Company follows the rules and guidelines pregitly the ACCME, ANCC and other continuing educaticcrediting bodies to ensure

its continuing education programming is free froomenercial bias and consistent with the OIG guidaR&Eent changes in the codes of ethics
of the pharmaceutical and medical device tradeciasons place further restrictions on interactibe$ween pharmaceutical and medical de
manufacturers and health care professionals. Therityeof the Company’s accredited continuing ediagraprogramming is funded by
educational grants from our pharmaceutical and ca¢dievice customers. There is no assurance thgghaumaceutical and medical device
customers will continue to provide educational ¢ggaronsistent with past practices. In fact, we haygerienced a reduction in live event
activities we provide which are supported by phareutical and medical device companies. To the éxitert our customers continue to curtail
or restructure their business practices, our bsgsimath this customer base may suffer.

We may be liable to third parties for content thatavailable from our online library.

We may be liable to third parties for the contendur online library if the text, graphics, softwasr other content in our library violates
copyright, trademark, or other intellectual propeights, our content partners violate their coctwal obligations to others by providing cont
to our library, or the content does not confornateepted standards of care in the healthcare giofedVe attempt to minimize these types of
liabilities by requiring representations and watiesrelating to our content partneosinership of the rights to distribute as well as dlccurac
of their content. We also take necessary measoneview this content ourselves. Although our agrests with our content partners contain
provisions providing for indemnification by the d¢ent providers in the event of inaccurate conteat,content partners may not have the
financial resources to meet this obligation. Allddjability could harm our business by damaging i@putation, requiring us to incur legal ct

in defense, exposing us to awards of damages astg, @nd diverting management’s attention away foombusiness. See “Business —
Intellectual Property and Other Proprietary Rights”"a more complete discussion of the potentidat$ of this liability on our business.

Protection of certain intellectual property may lfficult and costly.

Despite protection of certain proprietary rightshiad-party could, without authorization, copyatherwise misappropriate our content,
information from our databases, or other intellatfroperty. Our agreements with employees, coastdtand others who participate in
development activities could be breached and réswltir trade secrets becoming known or indepetyldeteloped by competitors. We may
not have adequate remedies for any breach. Iniaddihe laws of some foreign countries do notg@ebbur proprietary rights to the same
extent as the laws of the United States, and @ffeattellectual property protection may not beitalde in those jurisdictions. We currently
own several trademarks and domain names. The ¢wystem for registering, allocating and managiomdin names has been the subject of
litigation and proposed regulatory reform. Additdiy, legislative proposals have been made byé¢lderal government that would afford bre
protection to owners of databases of informatioigchsas stock quotes. This protection of databdseady exists in the European Union. There
has been substantial litigation in the computer@mlthe industries regarding intellectual propeasgets, particularly patents. Third parties may
claim infringement by us with respect to currend &nture products, trademarks or other proprietagiyts, and we may counterclaim against
such third parties in such actions. Any such claimsounterclaims could be
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time-consuming, result in costly litigation, divenanagement’s attention, cause product releasggjetjuire us to redesign our products or
require us to enter into royalty or licensing agneats, any of which could have a material adveffegteupon our business, financial condition
and operating results. Such royalty and licensgrge@ments may not be available on terms accepti@big, if at all.

We may be unable to protect our intellectual properand we may be liable for infringing the inteliéual property rights of others.

Our business could be harmed if unauthorized Eanieinge upon or misappropriate our intellectpdperty, proprietary systems, content,
services or other information. Our efforts to pobteur intellectual property through copyright,deanarks and other controls may not be
adequate. In the future, litigation may be necgstaenforce our intellectual property rights ordigtermine the validity and scope of the
patents, intellectual property or other proprietagits of third parties, which could be time coméng and costly. Intellectual property
infringement claims could be made against us, éalhyeas the number of our competitors grows. Thetaens, even if not meritorious, could
be expensive and divert our attention from opegatiar company. In addition, if we become liabléhiod parties for infringing their
intellectual property rights, we could be requiteghay a substantial damage award and develop gaimipanon-infringing intellectual
property, to obtain a license, or to cease progidive content or services that contain the infriggntellectual property. We may be unable to
develop non-infringing intellectual property or alvt a license on commercially reasonable ternes, al.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2. Properties

Our principal office is located in Nashville, Terssee. Our lease for approximately 32,000 squatefehis location expires in April 2010. T
lease provides for a five-year renewal option wétes increasing during the renewal period. Retitiaiocation is currently approximately
$23,000 per month.

In connection with the acquisition of TJO in Ma2B07, we are leasing approximately 19,000 squatedieoffice space in Laurel, Maryland.
The lease expires in March 2012 and provides forremewal options for two years each. Rent atlthuation is approximately $31,000 per
month, with annual rental increases of approxinyatalee percent.

We are leasing approximately 8,000 square feeffisleospace in Franklin, Tennessee. Rent at thiatlon is approximately $9,000 per month
through August 2009 when the lease expires.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

None.
Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
None.
PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Sktwlder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Seities.

The following table sets forth, for the periodsigaded, the high and low sales prices per shaceio€ommon stock as reported on the
NASDAQ Global Market under the ticker symbol HST

Common Stock Price

2008 2007
High Low High Low
First Quarte! $3.37 $2.77 $4.6 $3.31
Second Quarte 3.2C 2.57 4.3z 3.3¢
Third Quartel 3.07 2.3 3.41 2.52
Fourth Quarte 2.7¢ 2.01 3.7: 2.8¢

On March 3, 2009, there were 2,530 registered helded approximately 149 beneficial holders of @mmon stock. Because many of such
shares are held by brokers and other institutionsemalf of shareholders, we are unable to estithatéotal number of shareholders
represented by these record holders.

DIVIDEND POLICY

We have never declared or paid any cash dividendsiocommon stock, and we do not anticipate pagagh dividends in the foreseeable
future. We intend to retain earnings to financeekpansion of our operations.
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STOCK PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The graph below compares the cumulative total $tedder return on our common stock since Decembg2@Qd3, with the cumulative total
return of companies on the Nasdaq Composite Inddxlee Nasdag Computer & Data Processing Indextbreesame period (assuming the
investment of $100 in our common stock, the Nasgiapposite Index and the Nasdagq Computer & Datad®sieg Index on December 31,
2003 (for our stock and the indices) and reinvestroéall dividends).

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN @)
Among HealthStream, Inc., The NASDAQ Composite Inde
And The NASDAQ Computer & Data Processing Index
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—— Healthitre am, [ne. 100.00 103 .08 89 62 151 %2 154 62 29,62
—r— HASDAQ Composite 100.00 11008 11292 12881 1538.35 2085
—#— N ASDAQ Computer & 100.00 11552 11329 135 .40 15821 90,83

Data Processing

—— HealthStream, Inc. —=— NASDAQ Composite —=—HNASDAQ Computer & Data Processing

(1) $100 invested on 12/31/2003 in stock or ir-including reinvestment of dividends. Fiscal yeadiag December 31

RECENT SALES OF UNREGISTERED SECURITIES

There have been no sales of unregistered secusities December 31, 2007.

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES
There were no common stock purchases by the Conghannyg the quarter ended December 31, 2008.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The selected statements of income data for thetyear period ended December 31, 2008 and thedmatdreet data as of December 31, 2008
and 2007 are derived from our consolidated findrst&tements that have been audited by Ernst & YdwtP, our independent registered
public accounting firm, which are included elsewehir this report. You should read the followinges¢éd financial data in conjunction with
our consolidated financial statements and the rotésose statements and “Management’s DiscussidrAaalysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations” located elsewhere in thi®re

HealthStream acquired TJO on March 12, 2007 and @MMarch 28, 2005. TJO's results of operationsimckided within our consolidated
statement of operations effective March 13, 200VIRZs results of operations are included within oansolidated statement of operations
effective March 29, 2005. As a result of these &itjons, the annual results presented below atemmparable. Revenues may be subject to
fluctuations as discussed further in “Managemebit&cussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &ebults of Operations” located
elsewhere in this report. During 2008, we recoghiagortion of our deferred tax assets, resultingrn income tax benefit of approximately
$375,000. During 2007 we recognized a portion ofdrferred tax assets, resulting in an income &aebt of approximately $2.0 million.
During 2006, we adopted Statement of Financial Aotiog Standards (SFAS) No. 123(R) “Share-Basedrieay’ which resulted in
approximately $772,000, $742,000, and $682,00@caksbased compensation expense for 2008, 2002@0®| respectively. As a result of
these factors, the annual results presented belowa comparable. The operating results for anglgiyear are not necessarily indicative



the results to be expected in the future.
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Year Ended December 31,
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

(in thousands, except per share date

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA
Revenues, ne $51,60( $43,94¢ $31,78! $27,35¢ $20,05°
Operating costs and expens

Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation

amortization) 19,65: 16,16 10,86¢ 9,74¢ 7,27
Product developmel 5,67(C 4,30¢ 3,50: 2,92¢ 2,531
Sales, marketing, general and administrative exgs 18,97: 17,06( 12,61 10,41: 9,43:
Depreciation and amortizatic 4,82: 4,50% 2,88¢ 2,67¢ 2,107

Total operating costs and expen 49,11¢ 42,03t 29,87 25,76: 21,34¢

Income (loss) from operatiol 2,482 1,91¢ 1,90¢ 1,59¢ (2,297
Other income (expens 72 22€ 61¢ 33€ 243
Income (loss), before income tay 2,55¢ 2,142 2,52¢ 1,93¢ (1,04%)
Income tax (benefitprovision (300) (1,949 28 21
Net income (loss $ 2,85t $ 4,08i $ 2,50( $ 1,91: $ (1,049
Net income (loss) per she— basic $ 0.1c $ 0.1¢ $ 0.12 $ 0.0¢ $ (0.0¢
Net income (loss) per she— diluted $ 0.12 $ 0.1¢ $ 0.11 $ 0.0¢ $ (0.0%
Weighted average shares of common stock outstai

— basic 21,707 21,99¢ 21,57 21,05: 20,58t¢
Weighted average shares of common stock outstand

— diluted 22,20¢ 22,70: 22,35¢ 21,94: 20,58¢

At December 31,
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
(in thousands)

BALANCE SHEET DATA:

Cash and cash equivalel $ 4,107 $ 3,59¢ $10,72¢ $ 5,72¢ $ 2,257
Investments in marketable securit— short and long

term — — 1,70( 6,17t 14,02t
Goodwill and intangible asse 25,88¢ 26,85 13,07: 13,58: 3,47:
Working capital (deficit 1,14¢ (90€) 11,14¢ 9,42¢ 15,37¢
Total asset 52,797 53,36 41,00¢ 35,21¢ 28,43¢
Deferred revenu 10,20: 9,49: 5,37¢ 4,50z 3,86¢
Long-term debt and capital leases, net of current po 32C 1,06¢ 107 21¢ 29
Shareholdel" equity 36,76 35,71« 29,63¢ 25,80( 21,73(

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiab@dition and Results of Operations

The following discussion of the financial conditiand results of operations of HealthStream shoealceld in conjunction with “Selected
Financial Data” and HealthStream’s Consolidatedifaial Statements and related notes thereto indladewhere in this report. This
discussion contains forward-looking statementsitihadlve risks and uncertainties. HealthStreamtsi@aresults may differ significantly from
the results discussed and those anticipated i floeward-looking statements as a result of mantofa, including but not limited to those
described under “Risk Factors” and elsewhere mrtport.

The following discussion provides an overview of bistory together with a summary of our criticataunting policies and estimates. Our
critical accounting policies and estimates incloedenue recognition, product development costsrelatied capitalization, impairment of
goodwill, intangibles and other long-lived assatiywance for doubtful accounts, accrual for sexvitterruptions, stock based compensation,
income taxes, and nonmonetary exchanges.

OVERVIEW

We provide our services to healthcare organizatipharmaceutical and medical device companiesptret members within the healthcare
industry. Our services are primarily focused ondbbvery of education and training products anwises (HealthStream Learning), as well as
survey and research services (HealthStream Re3ebledithStream Learning products and servicesidecbur Internet-based HealthStream
Learning Center®, authoring tools, courseware sifitgens, online training and content developmentjne sales training courses, live events,
HospitalDirect®and other products focused on education and tigiliserve professionals that work within healteaaiganizations. Effectiy
with the acquisition of TJO in March 2007, we labed HealthStream Researéh. HealthStream Research reflects the combinatidbMiR

and TJO, which collectively provide a wide rangejoélity and satisfaction surveys, data analysesiofey results, and other research-based
measurement tools focused on patients, employégsigians, and members of the community. Our legrsblutions help healthcare
organizations improve their required regulatorynirey, while also offering an opportunity to tratmeir employees in multiple clinical areas.
Our research products provide customers valuabklghhinto measuring quality and satisfaction ofgibians, patients, employees, and
members of the community.

Revenues for the year ended December 31, 2008appreximately $51.6 million compared to $43.9 roitlifor the year ended December



2007, an increase of 17.4%. Operating income imgnide $2.5 million compared to $1.9 million for Z00Net income for
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2008 was $2.9 million compared to $4.1 million #807. Net income includes an income tax benefépgroximately $375,000 in 2008 and
$2.0 million in 2007 associated with the recogmitad a portion of the Company’s deferred tax asd@itsted earnings per share were $0.13 for
2008 compared to $0.18 for 2007. Revenues fromthigkam Learning grew by $5.4 million, and reveninem HealthStream Research g

by $2.3 million. We had approximately 1,732,000yfunplemented subscribers on our Internet-base@ lglatform at December 31, 2008,
representing over 1,900 hospitals in the UnitedeSteDuring 2008, we renewed approximately 474}00C subscribers, representing a 91%
renewal rate for the subscribers up for renewal,ath00% renewal rate based on the annual conaat up for renewal. As of December 31,
2008 our cash and investment balances approxingdtddmillion and we maintained full availability der our $15.0 million revolving credit
facility.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES
Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenues from our Internet-based ileguproducts and courseware subscriptions basedpan person subscription basis, and in
some cases on a per license basis. Our fees aé bashe size of the facilities’ or organizatioesiployee user population and the service
offerings to which they subscribe. Revenue is raczayl ratably over the service period of the undegl contract.

Revenues from survey and research services argnieea when survey results are delivered to custewia either Internet-based reporting
throughout the survey period or by providing fisatvey results once all services are complete. Resefor survey and reporting services,
which are provided through the use of Internet-asporting methodologies, are recognized usingtbportional performance method,
consistent with SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin N@41 “Revenue Recognition,” reflecting recognitibimaughout the service period which
corresponds with the survey cycle and reportingsedy the customer, which typically ranges from tanfive months. Revenues for survey
and reporting services, which include delivery afvgy results to the customer when all servicecanepleted, are recognized upon
completion. All other revenues are recognized ag¢hated services are performed or products dieeded to the customer. Revenues for tl
services can be subject to seasonal factors basedstomerstequirements that can impact the timing, frequeaag volume of survey cycle

Revenues from professional services include comteiitenance, consulting, and implementation sesviEees are based on the time and
efforts involved, and revenue is recognized upangetion of performance milestones using the priopoal performance method.

We offer training services for clients to facilgahtegration of our Internet-based products. Feesaining are based on the time and efforts of
the personnel involved. Basic online training isg@lly included in the initial contract; howevargremental training is fee based and reve|
are generally recognized upon completion of trajrsarvices.

We recognize revenue from live event developmentices using a proportional performance method dasecompletion of performance
milestones. Revenues from content maintenance evel@pbment services are recognized using a pegewnfacompletion method based on
labor hours, which correspond to the completiopeformance milestones and deliverables. Salesoaiuygts and services to pharmaceutical
and medical device companies can be subject tosebfactors as a result of meeting and conferdates for such companies.

Revenues associated with online training are reicedrover the term of the subscription period cgrahe historical usage period, if usage
typically differs from the subscription period. Adther service revenues are recognized as thededatvices are performed or products are
delivered.

We expect to continue to generate revenues by riagkeur Internet-based products and our surveyrasearch services through healthcare
organizations and to a lesser extent, through pheentical and medical device companies. We expatthe portion of our revenues relate
services provided via our Internet-based learniglpcts will increase in absolute dollar amountse Percentage of total revenues from our
Internetbased subscription products has declined comparbkigtorical periods, whereas revenues from owresuand research services are
Internet-based. Specifically, we will seek to geterevenues from healthcare workers by marketiribeir employers or sponsoring
organizations. The fees we charge for coursewardtineg from this marketing is typically paid bytleér the employer or sponsoring
organization.
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Accounting for Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes using thditiamethod in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Aaating for Income Taxes.” The
Company has significant net operating loss carwydods (NOLs) which may be available to reduce fitax expense. These NOLs are subject
to annual limitations under the Internal Revenud&8ection 382, which could result in the expirati certain portions of the Company’s
NOLs before they are fully utilized. Prior to th¢h quarter of 2007, the Company maintained a full &ian allowance against its deferred tax
assets, and taxable income was offset throughgbeinet operating loss carryforwards. Managerperibdically assesses the realizability of
its deferred tax assets. At December 31, 2007 neamnagt concluded that it is more likely than not tiygproximately $2.0 million would be
realized. Further, at December 31, 2008 managecogriuded that it is more likely than not that apgmately $2.4 million of the Company’s
deferred tax assets will be realized in futurequsi The Company continues to maintain a valuatitmvance of approximately $12.1 million
for the remaining portion of its deferred tax assethich primarily consist of net operating lossrgfrwards.

Product Development Costs

We account for web site development costs in aeuare with Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issoe08-2 “Accounting for Web Site
Development Costs” and for capitalized softwarduieaenhancements in accordance with Statemerisifiéh (SOP) 98-1 “Accounting for
the Costs of Computer Software Developed or ObthioeInternal Use,” which provide guidance on whermapitalize versus expense costs
incurred to develop internal use software or wédssiWe capitalize costs incurred during the devalent phase for such projects when such
costs are material. Maintenance and operating eostexpensed as incurred.

Product development costs primarily include out€s initially develop and maintain software featenhancements and content for our
Internet-based learning products. Once plannirngispleted and development begins, we capitalizznial costs and payments to third parties
associated with the cost of software feature endraeat development or content where the life expegtés greater than one year and the
anticipated cash flows from such software featmfgaacements or content are expected to exceedshefcthe related asset. During 2008 and
2007, we capitalized approximately $75,000 and B0 respectively, related to development of cainby third parties. Such amounts are
included in the accompanying consolidated balaheets under the caption “prepaid development faed™other assets.” During 2008 and
2007, we capitalized approximately $1.0 million &&d6 million, respectively, for development of teedre feature enhancements, primarily by
third parties. Such amounts are included in the@panying balance sheets under the caption “ceg@thkoftware feature enhancements.” A
significant portion of these capitalized costs waseociated with the development of the new vergf@ur Internetbased HLC platform, a ne
competency assessment product, and a new repeytitgm for our survey and research platform. Wertineocontent and software feature
enhancements over their expected life, which isgaly one to four years. Capitalized content aftiare feature enhancements are subje

a periodic impairment review in accordance with imopairment review policy.

In connection with product development, our sigmifit estimates involve the assessment of the dawelot period for new products, as wel
the expected useful life of costs associated wéth products, software feature enhancements anémo@nce capitalized, software feature
enhancements and content development costs aecstijhe policies and estimates described bedgarding goodwill, intangibles and other
long-lived assets.

Product development costs also include our systeam, which manages our efforts associated witdymbdevelopment and maintenance,
database management, quality assurance and sedtnigyteam is responsible for new internal prodiestelopment, integration of external r
products, and continued enhancements and regugleligduled maintenance to our learning and resgdaitform products. Personnel who are
responsible for our overall product portfolio adives prioritization of new product development afgo included in product development
costs.

Goodwill, intangibles and other long-lived assets

We account for goodwill, intangibles and other ldivgd assets in accordance with SFAS No. 142, ‘@dt and Intangible Assets,” and
SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or pasal of Long-Lived AssetsWe measure for impairment at the reporting unieleising

a discounted cash flow model to determine the edécthfair value of the reporting units. Our disdmancash flow model contains significant
assumptions and accounting estimates about discata®, future cash flows and terminal values ¢batd materially affect our operating
results or financial position if they were to chargignificantly in the future and could result mienpairment. We perform our goodwiill
impairment test whenever events or changes in taat8cumstances indicate that impairment mayteatsl also during the fourth quarter each
year.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We estimate the allowance for doubtful accountegibioth a specific and non-specific identificatioathod. Management’s evaluation
includes reviewing past due accounts on a casexby lsasis, and determining whether an accountgheuleserved, based on the facts and
circumstances surrounding each potentially uncttiecaccount. An allowance is also maintaineddocounts not specifically identified that
may become uncollectible in the future. Uncolldetibccounts are written-off in the period managerbetieves it has exhausted every
opportunity to collect payment from the customeadBlebt expense is recorded when events or ciramees indicate an additional allowance
is necessary based on our specific and non-spédidification approach.
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Accrual for Service Credits

Due to the complexity of our hosted applicatioresjability in customer utilization patterns, chaage technology, and potential software
defects, our hosted learning management applicationld experience periodic downtime. In additiwe,have specific contractual obligations
that can result in penalties to us associated syiitem performance and other commitments. We maiataaccrual which is intended to
provide for customer concessions due to customgrsreencing inconveniences or operation disruptésulting from downtime or
performance of our applications, or our failureneet certain contractual obligations to custom@rs. accrual for service credits totaled
approximately $345,000 as of December 31, 2008.

Stock Based Compensation

We began recognizing compensation expense usiaig-adiue based method for costs related to shasedpayments including stock options
on January 1, 2006. Measurement of such compensatipense requires significant estimation and aptans; however we believe that the
Black Scholes option pricing model we use for clting the fair value of our stock based compensaplans provides a reasonable
measurement methodology using a framework thatdelwadopted.

As of December 31, 2008, we had a stock option ptathan employee stock purchase plan which qualifiestock based compensation plans.
On February 9, 2009, the Company terminated thdamae stock purchase plan and deregistered thddiaed unissued shares remaining in
the plan. During the years ended December 31, 200, and 2006, we recorded $771,560, $742,344682,068 of stock based
compensation expense, respectively. We typicatiygstock options to our management group on anarrasis, or when new members of
management group begin their employment. We gtaokptions to members of our board of directarsdnjunction with our annual
shareholders meeting, or as new members are addag@i@ rata basis based on the time elapsed sima@nnual shareholders’ meeting. We
expect to continue this practice for the foresesfitiure; however, we may adjust the size of theuahgrant. As of December 31, 2008, total
future compensation cost related to non-vesteddsvant yet recognized was $1,192,503 net of estidhiairfeitures, with a weighted average
expense recognition period of 2.5 years. Futurepamsation expense recognition for new option grasitsyary depending on the timing and
size of new awards granted, changes in the marlest pr volatility of our common stock, changesisk-free interest rates, or if actual
forfeitures vary significantly from our estimates.

Nonmonetary Exchange of Content Rights and Deferre&ervice Credits

During 2007 and 2006, we recorded content rightsceferred service credits in connection with amonetary exchange with one of our
customers. In order to account for this transactimestimated the fair value of the related asmedsservice credits, assessed whether the
value assigned to the content was recoverableaarwitized the related assets over their estimagetullives. Our future operating results will
be impacted by the customer’s utilization of thevie credits. Revenues for services provided icharge for service credits will be
recognized in accordance with our revenue recagnjtolicies.

BUSINESS COMBINATION

The Jackson Organization, Research ConsultantsQndviarch 12, 2007, the Company acquired all ofitkaed and outstanding common
stock of TJO for approximately $12.6 million, costsig of approximately $11.5 million in cash an@Z8.6 shares of HealthStream common
stock. The Company incurred approximately $690&0direct, incremental expenses associated witlatggiisition of TJO. TJO provides
healthcare organizations with quality and satisf@csurveys, data analyses of survey results, #mer oesearch-based measurement tools. This
acquisition was accounted for using the purchag@adeof accounting. TJO’s results of operationsehdgen included in the Compasyesult:

in the HealthStream Research business unit frondaite of the acquisition.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Revenues and Expense Components
The following descriptions of the components oferewes and expenses apply to the comparison ofsedidperations.

RevenuesRevenues for our HealthStream Learning businessaegprimarily consist of the following productsdaservices: provision of
services through our Internet-based HLC, authoimads, a variety of courseware subscriptions (add-@urseware), implementation and
consulting services, maintenance of third partyteot) content development, online sales trainingses (RepDirect™), HospitalDirect®, and
a variety of other educational activities for plyyans, nurses and other professionals within healéhorganizations. Revenues for our
HealthStream Research business segment consigalifycand satisfaction surveys, data analysesiofey results, and other research-based
measurement tools focused on patients, physiceanployees, and other members of the community.

Cost of Revenues (excluding depreciation and agaiitin).Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and amatitin) consists primarily of
salaries and employee benefits, stock based corap@msemployee travel and lodging, materials, aurtsed phone survey support, contract
labor, hosting costs, and other direct expensexcidsd with revenues as well as royalties paid$jo content providers based on a percet
of revenues. Personnel costs within cost of revemme associated with individuals that facilitateduct delivery, provide services, conduct,
process and manage phone and paper-based suraage kbustomer support calls or inquiries, manhgeaedchnology infrastructure for our
hosted applications, manage content and survejcesp\coordinate content maintenance servicespeondde training or implementation
services.

21




Table of Contents

Product DevelopmenProduct development expenses consist primarilalafries and employee benefits, stock based compiemseontent
acquisition costs before technological feasibilityachieved, costs associated with the developofertintent and expenditures associated with
maintaining, developing and operating our trainiegjjvery and administration platforms. In additignoduct development expenses are
associated with the development of new softwartifeeenhancements and new products. Personnelveitisits product development include
our systems, application development, and quatispeance teams, product managers, and other petssociated with content and product
development.

Sales and Marketing Expens&ales and marketing expenses consist primarilplefies, commissions and employee benefits, staskd
compensation, employee travel and lodging, adwegtisrade shows, promotions, and related marketoggs. During the past several years
have hosted a national customer conference in Nlisskaown as “The Summit,” of which a significaprtion of the costs are included in
sales and marketing expenses. Personnel costswilds and marketing include our Learning and &ehesales teams, strategic account
management, consultants, and marketing persorselethas our account management group.

Depreciation and AmortizatioiDepreciation and amortization consist of fixed asgpreciation, amortization of intangibles consédito have
definite lives, amortization of content developmisgs, and amortization of capitalized softwareusaenhancements.

Other General and Administrative Expeng@ther general and administrative expenses consimgafly of salaries and employee benefits,
stock based compensation, employee travel andrigdéacility costs, office expenses, fees for pssfenal services, and other operational
expenses. Personnel costs within general and astnaitive expenses include individuals associatéd mormal corporate functions
(accounting, legal, human resources, administratinternal information systems, and executive mansnt) as well as personnel who
maintain our accreditation status with various argations.

Other Income/Expens&he primary component of other income is interesbime related to interest earned on cash, cashagois and
investments in marketable securities. The primampmonent of other expense is interest expenseedetata promissory note, capital leases
our revolving credit facility.

2008 Compared to 2007

RevenuesRevenues increased approximately $7.7 million,704%, to $51.6 million for 2008 from $43.9 millidor 2007. Revenues for 2008
consisted of $32.8 million, or 63.6% of total reuenfor HealthStream Learning and $18.8 million36r4% of total revenue, for HealthStream
Research. In 2007, revenues consisted of $27.milbr 62.5% of total revenue, for HealthStreararaéng and $16.5 million, or 37.5% of
total revenue, for HealthStream Research. Heakl8trResearch revenues include the results of Td®nencing with its acquisition on

March 12, 2007.

Revenues for HealthStream Learning increased appedely $5.4 million, or 19.6%, during 2008. Ofghncrease, $6.4 million was derived
from our Internet-based subscription learning patsiuiwhich includes revenue increases from the 3.6 million and from courseware
subscriptions and online training services of $8ilion. Revenues from our Internet-based subsiciipproducts collectively increased 29%
over the prior year and approximated $28.7 milimn2008. In addition, revenues associated withlémentation, development, and consul
services increased $935,000 over the prior yeas&lncreases in revenues were partially offset dgcline in revenues from live events, s
guides, and association activities, which collesdiideclined $1.9 million compared to the prior yeur Internet-based HLC subscriber base
increased approximately 12% during 2008, from agipnately 1,541,000 fully implemented subscriberthatend of 2007 to approximately
1,732,000 fully implemented subscribers at the @&r08.

Revenues for HealthStream Research increased $#idhior 13.8%, during 2008, primarily resultifigom the impact of the March 2007
acquisition of TJO. TJO revenues during 2007, pieasur acquisition and not included in our restdts2007, approximated $2.6 million. The
change in revenues was also impacted by the n@wadrof a significant contract during 2008, whidtaunted for approximately 4% of
HealthStream Research revenues during 2007. Resérume our patient and community survey instrumeantsich have more recurring and
predictable survey cycles, accounted for 70.9%uofResearch revenues during 2008 up from 63.5%g2007.

Cost of Revenues (excluding depreciation and amaiitin).Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and amatitin) increased
approximately $3.5 million, or 21.6%, to $19.7 noili for 2008 from $16.2 million for 2007. Cost @venues as a percentage of revenue
approximated 38.1% and 36.8% of revenues for 20@8807, respectively.
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Cost of revenues for HealthStream Learning incre&4e3 million and approximated 32.3% and 33.8%ewénues for 2008 and 2007,
respectively. This expense increase primarily teguirom increased royalties paid by us assocwttdan increase in courseware subscription
revenues, as well as increased personnel anddaapenses, but was partially offset by lower casciated with live events, study guides
and association projects.

Cost of revenues for HealthStream Research inaieg&@ million and approximated 48.2% and 41.8%egEnues for 2008 and 2007,
respectively. The primary expense increase resétioaad the full year impact of personnel expenseseaisted with the TJO acquisition. The
expense increase as a percentage of revenuesiprireaulted from the increase in patient and comityusurveys over the prior year, which
have higher fulfillment costs. In addition, lowewvenues from other survey products that have |éwitment costs contributed to this
percentage increase over the prior year.

Gross Margin (excluding depreciation and amortieai. Gross margin (which we define as revenues lessofastvenues divided by revenu
was 61.9% for 2008, down from 63.2% for 2007. Gmossgins for HealthStream Learning were 67.7% a&h@% for 2008 and 2007,
respectively. This improvement resulted from theofable change in revenue mix and related costw#nues discussed above. Gross margins
for HealthStream Research were 51.8% and 58.2%0@8 and 2007, respectively. This decrease resfitted unfavorable changes in revenue
mix and cost of revenues discussed above.

Product DevelopmenProduct development expenses increased approxingited million, or 31.6%, to $5.7 million for 2008 m

$4.3 million for 2007. Product development experesea percentage of revenues was 11.0% and 9.88erfues for 2008 and 2007,
respectively. Product development expenses forthigikam Learning increased $966,000 and approgih.1% and 13.4% of revenues for
2008 and 2007, respectively. The increase in am@suoited from additional personnel and contrambtassociated with maintenance and
support of our learning platform products. Prodimielopment expenses for HealthStream Researataised $520,000 and approximated
5.5% and 3.1% of revenues for 2008 and 2007, réispBc This expense increase is primarily duedditonal personnel to support our
administrative platforms and a reassignment ofgrers| from general and administrative tasks to pcodevelopment when compared to the
prior year.

Sales and Marketingsales and marketing expenses increased approxyngdtd million, or 17.5%, to $10.8 million for 20@@®m $9.2 million
for 2007. This increase is associated with addiigersonnel and related expenses resulting frenT8®© acquisition, additional personnel for
both HealthStream Learning and HealthStream Relseates teams, as well as increased marketing sgpgeimcluding our annual customer
conference, The Summit. As a percentage of revesaéss and marketing expenses were 21.0% of regdouboth 2008 and 2007.

Sales and marketing expenses for HealthStream ingaincreased $725,000 and approximated 21.6% arg¥2of revenues for 2008 and
2007, respectively, and was primarily associateti ailditional sales personnel and related expearsicreased marketing expenses. Sales
and marketing expenses for HealthStream Researodsised $787,000 and approximated 18.8% and 16f68venues for 2008 and 2007,
respectively. This expense increase was assoaiatedhe TJO acquisition, new sales personnel atated expenses, and was partially offset
by lower marketing expenses.

Other General and Administrativ®ther general and administrative expense increagprbximately $304,000, or 3.9%, to $8.2 million fo
2008 from $7.9 million for 2007. This increase igyarily due to the full year impact of the TJO atgition, including facilities and other
operating costs. Other general and administratiperse as a percentage of revenues was 15.8% &% 1ot 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Other general and administrative expense for H8&lam Learning increased $522,000, primarily duedreased personnel expenses, travel,
and other related expenses to manage the busingés®ther general and administrative expense fealthStream Research decreased
$475,000, primarily due to the consolidation of laummesources and accounting personnel into ouocaig functions, in addition to the
redesignation of certain personnel to product dgwekent. These expense decreases were somewhatgffeeility costs and other expenses
associated with the full year impact of the TJOwasitjon. The unallocated corporate portion of otheneral and administrative expense
increased $257,000, primarily associated with &mitht personnel, increases in professional feesyiting, and other expenses.

Depreciation and AmortizatioiDepreciation and amortization increased approxity&&19,000, or 7.1%, to $4.8 million for 2008 from

$4.5 million for 2007. Depreciation, which is indeed in the unallocated corporate function, incrd&s7,000 over the prior year resulting
from new capital expenditures. Amortization incexh$162,000 resulting from capitalized softwaréusmenhancements and TJO intangible
asset amortization. Amortization for HealthStreagaining increased $87,000, or 5.3%, and approxar&a®% and 5.9% of revenues for 2008
and 2007, respectively. The increase in amountiisgpily associated with amortization of capitatizeoftware feature enhancements assoc
with the HLC platform and other content assets. Amation for HealthStream Research increased $16,0r 8.2%, and approximated 5.3%
and 5.6% of revenues for 2008 and 2007, respegtiVéle increase in amount resulted from the amatitim of TJO intangible assets.
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Other Income (Expensépther income, net decreased approximately $154@088.1%, to $72,000 for 2008 from $226,000 fod20nterest
income decreased $147,000 resulting from lowerstagebalances and lower yield rates during 2008rést expense increased $7,000 ove
prior year associated with our promissory note.

Income Tax (Benefit) ProvisioThe Company recognized an income tax benefit ofapmately $375,000 and $2.0 million during 2008 an
2007, respectively, which was based on managememtslusion that a portion of the Company’s defétex assets would be realized. During
2008, the $375,000 income tax benefit was partialget by $74,000 of income tax expense. During72@he $2.0 million income tax benefit
was partially offset by income tax expense of $8Q,0raxable income for both 2008 and 2007 was auhiatly offset by the Company’s net
operating loss carryforwards.

Net IncomeNet income was approximately $2.9 million, or $0pE3 diluted share, for the year ended Decembe2@18 compared to
$4.1 million, or $0.18 per diluted share, for tleayended December 31, 2007. This decrease isniyirttee result of the $2.0 million income
tax benefit recognized during 2007, offset by thanges in income from operations described above.

2007 Compared to 2006

RevenuesRevenues increased approximately $12.2 millior388%, to $43.9 million for 2007 from $31.8 millidor 2006. Revenues for 20
consisted of $27.5 million, or 62.5% of total reuenfor HealthStream Learning and $16.5 million385% of total revenue, for HealthStream
Research. In 2006, revenues consisted of $25.fomilbr 78.9% of total revenue, for HealthStreararnéng and $6.7 million, or 21.1% of to
revenue, for HealthStream Research. HealthStreaadReh revenues include the results of TJO commgnwith its acquisition on March 12,
2007.

Revenues for HealthStream Learning increased appedely $2.4 million, or 9.5%, during 2007. Of thierease, $3.2 million was derived
from our Internet-based subscription learning patgluwvhich included revenue increases from the l£§1.8 million and courseware
subscriptions of $1.3 million. Revenues from thpselucts increased 17% over the prior year andoxppated $21.9 million for 2007. In
addition, revenues associated with implementatienglopment, and consulting services increased,80Qbver the prior year. These
increases in revenues were partially offset bydimke in revenues from live events, study guides, association activities, which collectively
declined $1.5 million compared to the prior yeanr Giternet-based HLC subscriber base increaserippately 14% during 2007, from
approximately 1,352,000 fully implemented subsastat the end of 2006 to approximately 1,541,009 fnplemented subscribers at the end
of 2007.

Revenues from HealthStream Research increased>ampgitely $9.8 million, or 145.6%, during 2007, ofilwh $9.7 million resulted from the
March 12, 2007 acquisition of TJO. Organic reseaestenues for 2007 were flat compared to the yéar due to certain customers postpo
their survey cycles. Revenues from our patient@rdmunity survey instruments accounted for 63.5%ufResearch revenues during 2007
compared to 45.9% during 2006. A significant partad this increase in revenue mix resulted fromTl® acquisition.

Cost of Revenues (excluding depreciation and amaiitin).Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and amatitin) increased
approximately $5.3 million, or 48.7%, to $16.2 noill for 2007 from $10.9 million for 2006. Cost @venues as a percentage of revenues
increased to 36.8% of revenues for 2007 from 34o02%evenues for 2006.

Cost of revenues for HealthStream Learning incréapg@roximately $293,000, or 3.3%, and approxim&8®&8% and 35.8% of revenues for
2007 and 2006, respectively. This expense incrisgzemarily related to increased royalties paidusyassociated with increases in courseware
and training subscriptions as well as approxima®&§0,000 of incremental costs to support our enets in connection with their transition to
our new HLC platform, and was partially offset lowkr direct costs resulting from fewer live eventeen compared to the prior year.

Cost of revenues for HealthStream Research inalegseroximately $5.0 million, or 264.5%, and appmueted 41.8% and 28.1% of revenues
for 2007 and 2006, respectively. This expense asador HealthStream Research resulted primaoiy fincremental personnel to support the
survey delivery process, including our interviewoenter staff, as well as increased costs assdaidth outsourced phone interview services.
The expense increase as a percentage of revensgwimarily due to changes in revenue mix.

Gross Margin (excluding depreciation and amortiaa)i. Gross margin (which we define as revenues lessodastvenues divided by revenu:
declined to 63.2% for 2007 from 65.8% for 2006.sTtecrease resulted from the change in revenueistyssed above, and was primarily
associated with the growth in revenues and direstscfrom our research products. Gross marginkléafthStream Learning were 66.2% and
64.2% for 2007 and 2006, respectively. Gross marfginHealthStream Research were 58.2% and 71.920fd7 and 2006, respectively.
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Product DevelopmenProduct development expenses increased approxin®86b,000, or 23.0%, to $4.3 million for 2007 fr&3.5 million

for 2006. Product development as a percentagevehtees decreased to 9.8% for 2007 from 11.0% f662Product development expenses for
HealthStream Learning increased approximately $80,and approximated 13.4% and 11.9% of reverare®007 and 2006, respectively.
Approximately $600,000 of the expense increasdtexsirom additional costs to support our customéransition to the new version of our
HLC platform during the year. Product developmeqienses for HealthStream Research increased appatety $146,000 due to additional
personnel and approximated 3.1% and 5.5% of rexefune2007 and 2006, respectively.

Sales and Marketingsales and marketing expenses, including persomsées,dncreased approximately $2.2 million, or 24,20 $9.2 million
for 2007 from $7.0 million for 2006. This increasas primarily associated with incremental persoamel related expenses resulting from the
TJO acquisition, as well as incremental Health®tréaarning personnel and increased sales commgssitiese expense increases were
partially offset by lower marketing spending. Sadesl marketing expenses approximated 21.0% an@®@tevenues for the years ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Sales and marketing expenses for HealthStream inggincreased $414,000 and approximated 23.2% ant2of revenues for 2007 and
2006, respectively. The increase in expenses agded with additional sales personnel and cornioniss and was partially offset by lower
marketing expenses, including those related taoaual customer conference, The Summit. The expdease as a percentage of revenues
was due to the increase in revenues. Sales ancetimaylexpenses for HealthStream Research increks@dnillion and approximated 16.6%
and 13.2% of revenues for 2007 and 2006, respégtiVhis increase was primarily associated withTH® acquisition.

Other General and Administrativ®ther general and administrative expense increagprbximately $2.3 million, or 40.3%, to $7.8 nahi for
2007 from $5.6 million for 2006. This increase igarily due to the TJO acquisition, including pansel, facilities, and other operating costs.
Other general and administrative expense as amage of revenues was 17.9% and 17.6% for 2002@06, respectively.

Other general and administrative expense for H8&am Learning decreased $132,000, primarily duevter personnel costs. Other general
and administrative expense for HealthStream Rekéacteased $1.7 million, primarily from the TIQyaisition and additions of other
personnel. The unallocated corporate portion ofogfeneral and administrative expense increasedl,®8®, primarily associated with
increased investments in products and servicesppast the growth of our business.

Depreciation and AmortizatioiDepreciation and amortization increased approxity&te.6 million, or 55.9%, to $4.5 million for 20G7m

$2.9 million for 2006. Depreciation, which is indked in the unallocated corporate function, incrd&&42,000 resulting from new capital
expenditures and assets acquired from TJO durmgutrent year. The amortization increase of $lllom resulted from TJO intangible asset
amortization and amortization of capitalized softvBeature enhancements associated with the newpgtt€drm and other content assets.
Amortization for HealthStream Learning increase845600, or 67.1%, and approximated 5.9% and 3.98éwenues for the years ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Thieas® was primarily associated with amortizatiooagfitalized software feature
enhancements associated with the new HLC platforenagher content assets. Amortization for Heal#®tr Research increased $418,000, or
82.2%, and approximated 5.6% and 7.6% of reverure®007 and 2006, respectively. The expense inereas associated with the TJO
acquisition, while the decrease as a percentagevefhues was due to the increase in revenues.

Other Income (Expenseépther income (expense) decreased approximately,392or 63.4%, to $226,000 for 2007 from $619,80®006.
Interest income from cash and investments in mabtetsecurities decreased $371,000 resulting foaved cash and investments balances
during 2007. Interest expense increased $22,000tbgerior year associated with a promissory ot our revolving credit facility.

Income Tax (Benefit) ProvisioThe Company recognized an income tax benefit ofapmately $2.0 million during 2007 based on
management’s conclusion that a portion of the Compijsadeferred tax assets would be realized. Thderime tax benefit was partially offset by
$42,000 of income tax expense associated withlteeative minimum tax. During 2006, the Compangognized income tax expense of
$28,000 associated with the alternative minimum Taxable income for both 2007 and 2006 was subatyroffset by the Company’s net
operating loss carryforwards.

Net IncomeNet income was approximately $4.1 million, or $0pE8 diluted share, for the year ended Decembe2@17 up from $2.5 millior
or $0.11 per diluted share, for the year ended Déee 31, 2006. This improvement is the result ef$2.0 million income tax benefit and
increased gross profits, but was somewhat offseithgr expense increases mentioned above.
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FINANCIAL OUTLOOK FOR 2009

The Company provides projections and other forwacotting information in the “Financial Outlook fobR9” section within MD&A. This
section contains many forward-looking statemerdstiqularly relating to the Company’s future fingagerformance. These forward-looking
statements are estimates based on informationntlyreevailable to the Company, are made pursuatiteésafe harbor provisions of the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 and aréjeat to the precautionary statements set forthénintroduction Part | of this Annual Rep

on Form 10-K above. Actual results are likely ttfeti and in the past have differed, materiallynfirthose forecast by the Company, depending
on the outcome of various factors, including, boitlimited to, those set forth in Item 1A, Risk kars.

The Company expects that consolidated revenuebddull year 2009 will grow by 13 percent to 15gent. We anticipate revenue growth in
the Learning segment to be in the 16 percent tpet8ent range and the Research unit's revenuetedse by approximately 7 percent to
9 percent.

We expect our consolidated gross margin for 2008etsimilar to our full year 2008 results. We asicipate that operating expenses,
including product development, sales and marketliegreciation and amortization and other genermlagministrative expense will grow in
the range between 11 percent and 13 percent whepared to the Company’s full year 2008 levels fase categories.

We anticipate that operating income will increa8gy2rcent to 60 percent for the full year of 20@8sus our 2008 results. Net income, before
the impact of any potential future realized inca@re benefit resulting from reduction of our incotag valuation allowance in 2009 is expec
to grow by 20 percent to 60 percent over 2008 meime before our $375,000 income tax benefit.

We anticipate that fully diluted earnings per share2009, based on the net income described iptieious paragraph, will range between
$0.14 and $0.18 per share. We expect our 2009tieietax rate to be minimal and substantially lésm the statutory rates, resulting from
expected utilization of our net operating loss yamvards to offset current taxable income, andrtiated reduction in our valuation
allowance. The effective tax rate for 2009 exclualey potential future reversals of valuation alloegresulting in income tax benefits, as
occurred during 2007 and 2008.

We expect that capital expenditures, including hvaire, software and capitalized software developrf@mew features, enhancements and
content development for 2009 will range betweerraxmately $3.0 to $3.5 million.

SELECTED QUARTERLY OPERATING RESULTS

The following tables set forth selected statemefiacome data for the eight quarters ended Dece®be2008 both in absolute dollars and as
a percentage of total revenues. The informatioreémh quarter has been prepared on substantiallatine basis as the audited statements
included in other parts of this report and, in opinion, includes all adjustments, consisting diyarormal recurring adjustments, necessary for
a fair presentation of the results of operatiomgtiese periods. You should read this informationdnjunction with HealthStream’s
Consolidated Financial Statements and related tlogzsto included elsewhere in this report. Therajreg results for any quarter are not
necessarily indicative of the results to be expmkotahe future.

Factors Affecting Quarterly Operating Results

Revenues from our subscription products are reeegmniatably over the subscription term. Revenums §ales of products and services to
pharmaceutical and medical device companies caulject to seasonal factors resulting from thertgnif conferences and live events. Sui
and research revenues are impacted by seasor@kfagsulting from the volume, timing, and frequen€survey cycles. The results of
operations for TJO have been included in the Coryipastatements of income, effective March 13, 2@aring the fourth quarter of 2008, we
recognized a portion of our deferred tax assessiltiag in an income tax benefit of approximate87%$,000. During the fourth quarter of 2007
we recognized a portion of our deferred tax assessilting in an income tax benefit of approximat2.0 million. In addition, our expense for
compensated absences may fluctuate from quartpretder, depending on vesting and utilization byemployees.

Quarter Ended
March 31, June 30, September 3C December 31
2008 2008 2008 2008
(In thousands, except per share date

STATEMENT OF INCOME DATA:

Revenues, ne $11,42: $13,01 $ 13,66 $ 13,50
Operating costs and expens
Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and amatitin) 4,25¢ 4,86: 5,15¢ 5,11C
Product developmel 1,28¢ 1,331 1,531 1,52¢
Sales and marketir 2,552 2,69¢ 3,122 2,452
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,24¢ 1,20¢ 1,17¢ 1,19:
Other general and administrative exper 1,767 2,19: 2,09( 2,102
Total operating costs and expen 11,373 12,28¢ 13,07: 12,38:
Income from operation 45 724 591 1,12z
Other income, ne 22 23 18 9
Income before income tax 67 747 60¢ 1,131
Income tax provision (benefi — 8 — (309
Net income $ 67 $ 73¢ $ 60¢ $ 1,44

Net income per sha®:
Basic $ 0.0C $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0¢ $ 0.07




Diluted $ 0.0C $ 0.0% $ 0.0t $ 0.07

Weighted average shares of common stock outstan
Basic 22,081 21,96 21,40% 21,37«

Diluted 22.72; 22,57¢ 21,91( 21,60:
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STATEMENT OF INCOME DATA:
Revenues, ne
Operating costs and expens
Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and ametitin)
Product developmel
Sales and marketir
Depreciation and amortizatic
Other general and administrative exper
Total operating costs and expen
Income (loss) from operatiol
Other income, ne
Income before income tax
Income tax provision (benefi
Net income

Net income per sha® :
Basic

Diluted

Weighted average shares of common stock outstan
Basic

Diluted

STATEMENT OF INCOME DATA:
Revenue:
Operating costs and expens
Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and ametitin)
Product developmel
Sales and marketir
Depreciation and amortizatic
Other general and administrative exper
Total operating costs and expen
Income from operatior
Other income, ne
Income before income tax
Income tax provision (benefi
Net income

STATEMENT OF INCOME DATA:
Revenue:
Operating costs and expens
Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and ametitin)
Product developmel
Sales and marketir
Depreciation and amortizatic
Other general and administrative exper
Total operating costs and expen
Income (loss) from operatiol
Other income, ne
Income before income tax
Income tax provision (benefi
Net income

Quarter Ended

March 31, June 30, September 3C December 31
2007 2007 2007 2007
(In thousands, except per share data)
$ 8,101 $12,047 $ 11,80¢ $ 11,99:

2,91t 4,35¢ 4,33¢ 4,557

1,07¢ 1,10( 1,165 962

1,73¢ 2,821 2,29¢ 2,364

85€ 1,19¢ 1,31% 1,132
1,60¢ 2,16( 1,967 2,11
8,192 11,63¢ 11,07¢ 11,12

(91) 40€ 73C 86¢

14C 22 27 39

49 43C 757 907
4 5 18 (1,979
$ 45 $ 42t $ 73¢€ $ 2,87¢
$ 0.0C $ 0.0z $ 0.02 $ 0.1
$ 0.0C $ 0.02 $ 0.0¢ $ 0.1z
21,93¢ 21,97( 22,02t 22,06¢
22,60: 22,78: 22,66 22,75t
Quarter Ended
March 31, June 30, September 3C December 31
2008 2008 2008 2008
(% of Revenues)

100.C 100.( 100.¢ 100.¢
39.€ 37.4 37.7 37.¢
11.2 10.2 11.2 11.c
22.Z 20.7 22.¢ 18.Z
10.€ 9.3 8.€ 8.8
15.5 16.€ 15.Z 15.€
99.€ 94.4 95.7 91.7

04 5.6 4.3 8.3

0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1

0.6 5.8 4.4 8.4

0.0 0.1 0.C (2.9

0.6 5.7 4.4 10.7

Quarter Ended
March 31, June 30, September 3C December 31
2007 2007 2007 2007
(% of Revenues)

100.C 100.( 100.( 100.(
36.C 36.2 36.7 38.C
13.c 9.1 9.9 8.C
21.4 23.4 19.4 19.7
10.€ 10.C 11.1 9.4
19.€ 17.€ 16.7 17.€

101.1 96.¢€ 93.¢ 92.¢
(1.2) 34 6.2 7.2

1.7 0.2 0.2 0.4
0.6 3.6 6.4 7.€
0.1 0.1 0.1 (16.4)

0.5 3.5 6.3 24.C




(1) — Due to the nature of interim earnings per shareutations, the sum of quarterly earnings per shareunts may not equal the repor
earnings per share for the full ye
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Net cash provided by operating activities was ayipnately $6.0 million during 2008 compared to $willion during 2007. Our primar
sources of cash were generated from receipts fnensdles of our products and services. The nunflays sales outstanding (DSO) was
60 days for 2008 compared to 63 days for 2007.Qtmpany calculates DSO by dividing the average @ttsoreceivable balance (excluding
unbilled and other receivables) by average daigmees for the year. The primary uses of cashrtd wr operations include personnel
expenses, sales commissions, royalty payments, gragrfor contract labor and other direct expenssesaated with delivery of our products
and services, and general corporate expenses llessvpayments associated with content development.

Net cash used in investing activities was approiefyeb2.1 million for 2008, compared to $13.9 neiliduring 2007. During 2008, we utiliz:
$1.1 million for purchases of property and equipmand $980,000 for software feature enhancemButsng 2007, we utilized approximately
$11.8 million of cash and investments to purcha¥®.TSoftware feature enhancement costs for 2008 asgociated with enhancements to our
survey administration platform and other new prasiuahile in 2007, these costs were associatedtivitmew version of our Internet-based
HLC and HCC platforms. Hardware and software spgndi 2008 and 2007 supported our Internet-basedugt infrastructure and other
operational requirements.

Net cash used in financing activities was approxatye$3.4 million for 2008, compared to $286,000idg 2007. The primary uses of ce
during 2008 included $2.9 million associated with share repurchase plan and $707,000 of paymades the promissory note. The primary
sources of cash for both 2008 and 2007 resulted fmoceeds associated with the issuance of comtock om both the exercise of
employee stock options and our Employee Stock RseRlan.

Our revenues increased and operating income imgrover the prior year, and our balance sheet sflgasitive working capital at
December 31, 2008. This working capital positiontcasts with our working capital deficit at DecemB&, 2007. The increase in working
capital resulted primarily from increases in caatabces combined with reductions in accounts payalicrued liabilities, accrued
compensation and related expenses, and currembpoftcapital leases. During 2008, the Company edpurchased approximately

$2.9 million of its common stock using cash gereddtom operations. As of December 31, 2008, oumauy source of liquidity was $4.1
million of cash and cash equivalents, restricteshcand related interest receivable. The Compastytas a $15.0 million revolving credit
facility loan agreement, all of which was availabteDecember 31, 2008.

We believe that our existing cash and cash equitsleestricted cash, related interest receivaaleh generated from operations, and available
borrowings under our revolving credit facility whbe sufficient to meet anticipated cash needs foking capital, new product development
and capital expenditures for at least the next dtihrs. Our revolving credit facility expires in Y009, and we are pursuing to renew or
replace this credit facility before its expiratiavhich may be difficult in the current economic &omment. As part of our growth strategy, we
review possible acquisitions that complement oodpcts and services. We anticipate that future iaituns, if any, would be effected through
a combination of stock and cash consideration. Vilg need to raise additional capital through thedsse of equity or debt securities and/or
borrowings under our revolving credit facility, another facility, to finance any future acquisigoihe issuance of our stock as consideration
for an acquisition would have a dilutive effect arudild adversely affect our stock price. The cretirkets have been experiencing extreme
volatility and disruption, and we cannot assure gt if we need additional financing that it Wik available on terms favorable to us, or ai
Failure to generate sufficient cash flow from opierss or raise additional capital when requiregufficient amounts and on terms acceptable
to us could harm our business, financial condifiad results of operations.

Commitments and Contingencies

We expect that our capital expenditures, softwaatuire enhancements, and content purchases withdpyate between $3.0 and $3.5 million
in 2009. We expect to fund these capital expenelituvith existing cash and investments and from gaslerated from operations, and if
necessary from our revolving credit facility. Frdianuary 1 through February 28, 2009, we had capifanditures of approximately $500,C
primarily related to hardware, software, content] aoftware feature enhancements.

Our strategic alliances have typically providedgayments to content partners based on revenuedesretbpment partners and other parties
based on services rendered. We expect to contimiisarrangements in the future. We have commiti:@nder capital lease obligations for
computer hardware and operating lease commitmentsuf operating facilities in Nashville, Tennesdesurel, Maryland, and Franklin,
Tennessee. We also have scheduled monthly paymeatsnder a promissory note through May 2010.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Company’s off-balance sheet arrangements pitim@mnsist of operating leases, purchase commitsjemd our revolving credit facility,
which is described further in Note 12 to the Compsmuoonsolidated financial statements containedveffeere in this report.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2007, the Financial Accounting Stansl&ualard (FASB) issued SFAS No. 141(R), “Businesmbioations” (“SFAS No. 141
(R)"). SFAS No. 141(R) establishes principles aaguirements for how an acquirer recognizes and unea#n its financial statements the
identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assdntontractual contingencies, any noncontrollimigriest in the acquiree and the goodwiill
acquired. SFAS No. 141(R) changes the accountingdquisition-related restructuring cost accruald the recognition of changes in the
acquirer’'s income tax valuation allowance, andargkr permits the capitalization of certain acdigisicosts. In addition the Statement
establishes disclosure requirements to enablevidleation of the nature and financial effects @& business combination. SFAS No. 141(R) is
effective prospectively, except for certain retmdve adjustments to deferred tax balances. Thepaay’s consolidated financial statements
will be impacted by SFAS 141(R) in relation to mess combination activities subsequent to Janua290d9.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160ntdatrolling Interests in Consolidated Financiat8ments—an amendment of
Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51" (“SFAS No. I6BFAS No. 160 establishes accounting and repgdiandards for ownership interests
in subsidiaries held by parties other than themtatbe amount of consolidated net income attriblgtséo the parent and to the noncontrolling
interest, changes in a parent’s ownership inteagst, the valuation of retained noncontrolling egjinvestments when a subsidiary is
deconsolidated. SFAS No. 160 also establishesodigi requirements that clearly identify and deatish between the interests of the parent
and the interests of the noncontrolling ownerssBtatement is effective beginning January 1, 200¢he Company. Management does not
anticipate that adoption of this new standard halve a material effect on the Company'’s financisifion, results of operations, or cash flows.

In April 2008, FASB Staff Position SFAS 142-3, “Retnination of the Useful Life of Intangible Asse{sFSP No. 142-3"), was issued. FSP
142-3 amends the factors that should be considerd@elveloping renewal or extension assumptions tseetermine the useful life of a
recognized intangible asset under SFAS No. 142ptdll and Other Intangible Assets.” The adoptidiF8P 142-3 is effective beginning
January 1, 2009 for the Company. Management daesnticipate the adoption of this new standard alve a material effect on the
Company'’s financial position, results of operatiomscash flows.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MarkRisk

We are exposed to market risk from changes inéstarates. We do not have any foreign currencyangd rate risk or commodity price risk.
As of December 31, 2008, our outstanding indebtssimecluded a promissory note of approximately $dildon and approximately $33,000
capital lease obligations. We may become subijeicttévest rate market risk associated with borrgsiander our revolving credit facility,
which bears interest at a variable rate based®B8@Day LIBOR Rate plus 150 basis points. We e exposed to market risk with respect to
our cash balances. At December 31, 2008, the Coyripezoh cash and cash equivalents, restricted cadiredated interest receivable totaling
approximately $4.1 million. Current investment saté return approximate 1.00 to 1.50%. Assuming28% rate of return on $4.1 million, a
hypothetical 10% decrease in interest rates woettlehse interest income and decrease net incorme annualized basis by approximately
$5,000.

The Company manages its investment risk by invgstircorporate debt securities, foreign corporatietdsecured corporate debt, and
municipal debt securities with minimum acceptalskdi ratings. For certificates of deposit and cogpe obligations, ratings must be A2/A or
better; A1/P1 or better for commercial paper; ABtbetter for taxable or tax advantaged auctioa saturities and AAA or better for tax free
auction rate securities. The Company also reqtiir@sall securities must mature within 24 montlwrfithe original settlement date, the ave
portfolio shall not exceed 18 months, and the greatt 10% or $5.0 million shall mature within 90ydaFurther, the Company’s investment
policy also limits concentration exposure and othwential risk areas. As of December 31, 2008maétained no investments in marketable
securities.

The above market risk discussion and the estimatezlints presented are forwdodking statements of market risk assuming the oecge o
certain adverse market conditions. Actual resulthé future may differ materially from those pipgd as a result of actual developments i
market.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
HealthStream, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balgineets of HealthStream, Inc. as of Decembe2(®18 and 2007, and the related
consolidated statements of income, shareholdetstye@nd cash flows for each of the three yeatdénperiod ended December 31, 2008.
These financial statements are the responsibititie@ Company’s management. Our responsibilitp isXpress an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamigUnited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to sbteasonable assurance about whether the finestatements are free of material
misstatement. We were not engaged to perform ait @futhie Company'’s internal control over finanaiaporting. Our audit included
consideration of internal control over financigboeting as a basis for designing audit procedurasdre appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion oreffectiveness of the Company’s internal contrafinancial reporting. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includesréxiag, on a test basis, evidence supporting theusms and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principlesarsg significant estimates made by managementeaaldating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referredlbove present fairly, in all material respedts,¢onsolidated financial position of
HealthStream, Inc. at December 31, 2008 and 20@¥tee consolidated results of its operations &éddsh flows for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2008, in conformitly W.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated findrste&ements, in 2007 the Company changed its rdathaccounting for uncertainty in
income taxes, and in 2006 the Company changeddtkad of accounting for share-based payments.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Nashville, Tennesse
March 23, 2009
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HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

December 31,

2008 2007
ASSETS
Current assett
Cash and cash equivale $ 4,106,61: $ 3,599,34!
Restricted cas 17,12¢ 13,50¢
Interest receivabl 4,09( 17,34(
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubéfttounts of $106,542 and $72,895 at December 31,

2008 and 2007, respective 8,303,21. 8,668,09.
Accounts receivabl— unbilled 1,669,35! 1,051,199
Deferred tax assets, curre 356,98 360,31
Prepaid royalties, net of amortizati 995,49: 317,56:
Prepaid development fees, net of amortiza 375,86¢ 991,73
Other prepaid expenses and other current a 1,034,021 659,32(

Total current asse 16,862,77 15,678,40

Property and equipmer
Equipment 12,651,22 11,812,72
Leasehold improvemen 1,990,53: 1,800,63:
Furniture and fixture 1,579,59. 1,597,76!
16,221,35 15,211,12
Less accumulated depreciation and amortize (12,746,48) (10,827,93)
3,474,86. 4,383,19I
Capitalized software feature enhancements, net@fraulated amortization of $2,500,017 and $1,453
at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respecti 4,392,78I 4,458,64.
Goodwill 21,146,86 21,146,86
Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortizaifdd,649,321 and $8,682,555 at December 31, 2008 a
2007, respectivel 4,737,82: 5,704,58
Deferred tax assets, noncurr 2,008,34. 1,629,55I
Other asset 173,44: 360,21
Total asset $52,796,88 $53,361,45
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ 1,386,77. $ 1,741,91
Accrued liabilities 2,556,10. 3,526,29:
Accrued compensation and related expe 477,27 727,28(
Commercial support liabilitie 347,23¢ 265,05(
Deferred revenu 10,202,30 9,492,97!
Current portion of long term de 724,09 706,69¢
Current portion of capital lease obligatic 20,59: 124,09¢
Total current liabilities 15,714,38 16,584,31
Long term debt, less current porti 306,94. 1,031,03
Capital lease obligations, less current por 12,77¢ 32,49(
Commitments and contingenci — —
Shareholder equity:
Common stock, no par value, 75,000,000 shares azdialp 21,382,055 and 22,315,485 shares issued

and outstanding at December 31, 2008 and 2007ectsgply 95,320,88 97,126,522

Accumulated defici (58,558,10) (61,412,90)
Total shareholde’ equity 36,762,78 35,713,61
Total liabilities and sharehold¢ equity $52,796,88  $53,361,45

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteigements.
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Revenues, ne
Operating costs and expens

HEALTHSTREAM, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and awstitin)

Product developmel
Sales and marketir
Depreciation and amortizatic

Other general and administrative exper
Total operating costs and expen

Income from operation
Other income (expense
Interest and other incon
Interest and other expen
Total other income (expens
Income before income tax
Income tax (benefit) provisic

Net income

Net income per shar

Basic
Diluted

Weighted average shares of common stock outstan

Basic
Diluted

For the Year Ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006
$51,599,54  $43,949,26.  $31,783,46
19,653,45 16,162,50 10,869,30
5,669,95. 4,307,731 3,502, 79!
10,820,06 9,212,40! 7,020,05:
4,822,26 4,503,18! 2,889,16:
8,152,29. 7,848,05: 5,593,02
49,118,02 42,033,88  29,874,33
2,481,51: 1,915,37 1,909,13;
139,80: 286,93( 657,43:
(67,61 (60,59¢) (38,83
72,18¢ 226,33 618,59
2,553,701 2,141,71: 2,527,72.
(301,08)  (1,945,49) 28,04
$ 2,854,79'  $ 4,087,20' $ 2,499,68
$ 0.1t $ 0.1¢  $ 0.12
$ 01 $ 0.1 $ 0.11
21,707,36  21,998,84 21,576,55
2220431  22,700,99  22,358,64

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbstaitements.
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HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Balance at December 31, 2C
Net income
Stock based compensati
Exercise of stock optior
Issuance of common stock to Employee Stock Purchist
Balance at December 31, 2C
Net income
Stock based compensati
Exercise of stock optior
Issuance of common stock to Employee Stock Purchist
Issuance of common stock in connection with actjais
Repurchase of common sto
Balance at December 31, 2C
Net income
Stock based compensati
Exercise of stock optior
Issuance of common stock to Employee Stock Purchist
Repurchase of common sto

Balance at December 31, 20

Total
Common Stock Accumulated Shareholders’
Shares Amount Deficit Equity

21,574,90 $93,799,93 $(67,999,79) $25,800,14
— — 2,499,68! 2,499,68!

— 682,06¢ — 682,06¢
285,68 490,46° — 490,46°
68,10: 162,08: — 162,08:
21,928,68 95,134,55 (65,500,11) 29,634,43
— — 4,087,20! 4,087,20!

— 742,34 — 742,34«

123,69’ 248,51° — 248,51°
37,68¢ 121,72: — 121,72:
252,61¢ 960,17( — 960,17(
(27,200 (80,784 — (80,789
22,315,48 97,126,52 (61,412,90) 35,713,61
— — 2,854,79! 2,854,79!

— 771,56( — 771,56(
106,16: 210,92¢ — 210,92¢
53,10¢ 130,91: — 130,91:
(1,092,70) (2,919,03) — (2,919,03)
21,382,05 $95,320,88 $(58,558,10) $36,762,78

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteigements.
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HEALTHSTREAM, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigeal by operating activitie:

Depreciatior
Amortization

Income tax benefit from recognition of deferred ¢esset:

Stock based compensation expe
Provision for doubtful accoun
Realized loss on disposal of property and equipr

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, exatydffects of acquisition:

Accounts and unbilled receivabl

Restricted cas

Interest receivabl

Prepaid royaltie

Prepaid development fe

Other prepaid expenses and other current a
Other asset

Accounts payabl

Accrued liabilities and accrued compensation atated expense

Commercial support liabilitie
Deferred revenu

Net cash provided by operating activit

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisitions, net of cash acquir

Proceeds from maturities and sale of investmentsarketable securitie

Purchases of investments in marketable secu

Payments associated with capitalized software feaohancemen

Purchases of property and equipm
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activi

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Issuance of common stock to Employee Stock Purchkst
Proceeds from exercise of stock opti

Repurchase of common sta

Payments on capital lease obligatir

Payments on promissory nc

Borrowings under revolving credit facili

Payments under revolving credit facil

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activi

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe

Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Interest paic

Income taxes pai

NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Capital lease obligations incurr

Acquisition of content rights in exchange for figigervice:
Issuance of common stock in connection with actjoiss

Purchase of property and equipment through issuahlomg term deb

For the Year Ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006
$2,854,79' $ 4,087,200 $ 2,499,68
2,104,741 1,947,99i 1,405,611
2,717,52; 2,555,18. 1,483,55:
(375,46) (1,989,86) —
771,56( 742,34 682,06¢
130,00( 30,00( 15,00(
15,93 844 2,718
(383,27) (110,66)) (2,410,72)
(3,629 251,21( (26,17¢)
13,25( 51,09¢ (13,91))
(677,93() (101,116 (194,719
(88,599 (642,29) (730,08)
(374,706 (133,35) 79,57¢
186,77: 371,56: 2,80¢
(428,90 125,81. 682,21(
(1,211,00) (253,82) 666,40¢
82,18 (50,160 (923,919
709,33t 223,31( 777,70:
6,042,59 7,105,29 3,997,81.
(9,199 (11,814,27) (270,009

— 2,500,00! 18,785,00

— (800,000 (14,303,81)
(980,43)) (2,566,43) (2,274,68)
(1,138,59) (1,264,56) (1,400,63)
(2,128,22) (13,945,27) 535,85¢
130,91: 121,72 162,08:
210,92 248,51° 490,46°
(2,919,030 (80,789 —
(123,219 (171,679 (186,59)
(706,699 (404,229 —
— (1,500,001 —

— 1,500,001 —
(3,407,10) (286,44) 465,95¢
507,26t (7,126,43) 4,999,62!
3,5699,34 10,725,78 5,726,15.
$4,106,61. $ 3,599,341 $10,725,78
$ 6023 $ 59,39¢ $ 36,40¢
$ 4686( $ 43,000 $ 21,00(
$ —  $ — $ 88,067
$ — $ 191660 $ 904,16
$ — $ 960,17 $ —
$ — $ 214196 $ =

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteigements.
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HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Reporting Entity and Segments

HealthStream, Inc. (the “Company”) was incorpordteti990 as a Tennessee corporation and is headgegin Nashville, Tennessee. We
operate our business in two segments: 1) HealthStteearning and 2) HealthStream Research. Our &a#tam Learning products consist of
Internet-based services and solutions to meetrigeing training, information, and education neefihe healthcare community. These
solutions provide, deliver and track computer basshatation for our customers in the United Statesugh our application service provider
(ASP) products. We also develop, manage, and liig&ionline, live, and print education and trainggjvities for provider-based healthcare
professionals and physicians as well as online aihrcand training activities for medical indussiales representatives. HealthStream Res
products offer healthcare organizations a wide easfgyuality and satisfaction surveys, analysesuofey results, and other research-based
services.

Recognition of Revenue

Revenues are derived from providing services thnaug Internet-based learning products, provisibsuovey and research services,
courseware subscriptions, professional servicegeob maintenance, live event development, custeveldpment and other education and
training services.

We recognize revenue in accordance with Americatitlrte of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) &ment of Position (SOP) 97-2,
“Software Revenue Recognition,” Securities and Exge Commission (SEC) Staff Accounting Bulletin N64, “Revenue Recognition,”
Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 99R&porting Revenue Gross Versus Net,” EITF Issue(@e3 “Application of AICPA
Statement of Position 97-2, Software Revenue Ratiognto Arrangements that Include the Right teel&oftware Stored on Another Entity’s
Hardware,” EITF Issue No. 00-21 “Revenue Arrangetmerith Multiple Deliverablesand other authoritative guidance. This guidanceiges
that revenue recognized from software and oth@ngements is to be allocated to each element afrthegement based on the relative fair
values of the elements. While elements includensoft products and post contract customer suppertfair value of each element is based on
objective evidence specific to the vendor. If featue cannot be determined for each element cdttemgement, all revenue from the
arrangement is deferred until fair value can bemeined or until all elements of the arrangemeatdalivered and customer acceptance has
occurred. Sales of our Internet-based learningymtdnclude customer support, implementation sesjiand training; therefore all revenues
are deferred until the Internbased learning product is implemented, at whicle tievenues are recognized ratably over the sulbiscripervice
period. In the event that circumstances occur, wbige rise to uncertainty regarding the colleditipiof contracted amounts, revenue
recognition is suspended until such uncertaintgs®lved. Fees for these services are billed dree&t monthly, quarterly, or annual basis.

Revenues derived from the delivery of servicesugloour Internebased learning products and courseware subscrpgirecognized ratal
over the term of the subscription service agreen@titer training revenues are generally recognigezh the completion of training.

Revenues recognized from our survey and researcitsg are determined using both the proportioeaiggmance method and the completed
contract method. Revenues are generally earnedtloeerstimated survey cycle, which typically ranfyjem less than one month to up to five
months. The survey cycle is generally initiateddabsn the receipt of the first survey responserand through provision of related survey
reports to the customer. If survey results areanatlable to the customer during the survey figdincle, revenues are recognized at time of
report delivery. All other revenues are recogniaedhe related services are performed or produetdeivered. Fees for these services are
billed upon initiation of the survey cycle, withggress billings made throughout the survey cycle.

Revenues derived from live event development sesvice recognized using the proportional performanethod based on the completion of
performance milestones. Revenues from professemralces, content maintenance, and custom develuseevices are recognized using a
percentage of completion method based on laborshadrich correspond to the completion of perforneamilestones and deliverables. All
other revenues are recognized as the related esraie performed or products are delivered. Fedhdse services are generally billed at
project initiation and upon completion of variougestones.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont inued)
Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include tlo®ants of the Company and its subsidiaries, all@th are wholly-owned. All inter-
company accounts and transactions have been etediimaconsolidation.
Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial stetiets in conformity with accounting principles geally accepted in the United States
requires management to make estimates and assus it affect the amounts reported in the findrst&@ements and accompanying notes.
Actual results could differ from those estimated anch differences could be material to the codatdid financial statements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
We consider cash and cash equivalents to be uictedtrhighly liquid investments with initial matties of less than three months.

Restricted Cash

Cash received for registration fees is classifedestricted cash on the accompanying consolidzhce sheets. The use of this cash is
restricted because it is held on behalf of the cenaial supporter until services have been rendextedhich time the registration fees are used
to pay certain expenses and fees for conductingetBervices. Excess registration funds are typicaihitted to the commercial supporter or
applied to other projects. Any deficiency in regation funds is billed to the commercial supporter.

Accounts Receivable-Unbilled and Deferred Revenue

Accounts receivable-unbilled represents the foligyil) revenue earned and recognized on contractaiated for using the proportional
performance method for which invoices have not lgererated or contractual billing dates have nehlyeached; and 2) the difference
between billings for contracts containing escalgaeding over the term of the agreement and thegeition of revenue ratably over the
subscription period. Deferred revenue representwiats, which have been billed or collected, butysitrecognized in revenue.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company estimates its allowance for doubtfabaats using a specific identification method. Mgeraent determines the allowance for
doubtful accounts on a case-by-case basis, bastgkdacts and circumstances surrounding each fatgruncollectible receivable. An
allowance is also maintained for accounts thahatespecifically identified that may become uncdiilele in the future. Uncollectible
receivables are writteoff in the period management believes it has exiealusvery opportunity to collect payment from thistomer. Bad del
expense is recorded when events or circumstandesate an additional allowance is required basedwrspecific identification approach.

Changes in the allowance for doubtful accountstaecdamounts charged to bad debt expense werelasdol

Allowance Balance

at Beginning of Charged to Costs Allowance Balance
Period and Expenses Write-offs at End of Period
Year ended December
2008 $ 72,89t $130,00( $96,35: $106,54:
2007 $112,23: $ 30,00( $69,33¢ $ 72,89¢
2006 $115,09( $ 15,00( $17,85¢ $112,23:
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont inued)
Capitalized Software Feature Enhancements

We account for capitalized software feature enheueces in accordance with SOP 98-1 “Accounting lier €osts of Computer Software
Developed or Obtained for Internal Use.” Capitadizeftware feature enhancements are stated ora#tie &f cost, and are presented net of
accumulated amortization. We capitalize costs irezliduring the development phase for such projehen such costs are material. These
assets are amortized using the straight-line metpeerally over one to four years. The Companytaliged approximately $1.0 million and
$2.6 million during 2008 and 2007, respectively.iM@nance and operating costs are expensed asddcés of December 31, 2008 and 2(
we had no capitalized internal development costsdmputer software developed for resale.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated on the basigstf Depreciation and amortization are providedhenstraight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives, except for assetder capital leases and leasehold improvemetishvare amortized over the shorter of the
estimated useful life or their respective leasmter

Years
Furniture and fixture 5-10
Equipment 3-5

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of purchase priee fair value of net tangible assets acquired. W@ant for goodwill and intangible asset:
accordance with Statement of Financial Accountiten8ards (SFAS) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other IntligAssets.” We measure goodwill
for impairment at the reporting unit level usingboncome and market based models to determinfathealue of the reporting units. We will
perform our goodwill impairment test whenever egamt changes in facts or circumstances indicaterizairment may exist, or at least
annually during the fourth quarter each year.

Intangible assets acquired through acquisitionsaneprised of content, contract rights, customkatienships, non-competition agreements
and favorable lease rights. As of December 31, 20@8gible assets with remaining unamortized badarinclude contract rights, customer
relationships and non-competition agreements recbird connection with the acquisitions of The Jack®rganization, Research Consultants,
Inc. (TJO) and Data Management and Research,DMR(. Intangible assets are considered to haveniefuseful lives and are being
amortized on a straight line basis over the expkpéeziods to be benefited, generally three to fiars for content, two to eight years for
contract rights, customer lists and customer @atiips, six months to four years for non-competiigreements, and over the lease term for
favorable lease rights. Our weighted average agmaiitin period for definite lived intangible assassof December 31, 2008 is 7.7 years.
Intangible assets are reviewed for impairment wienevents or changes in facts or circumstanceéesdtedthat the carrying amount of the
assets may not be recoverable. There were no impats identified or recorded for the years endeceber 31, 2008, 2007, or 2006.

Long-Lived Assets

We account for assets of a long term nature (“lved assets”) in accordance with SFAS No. 14 counting for the Impairment or Dispo:
of Long-Lived Assets,” which requires that companiensider whether events or changes in facts iatuhestances, both internally and
externally, may indicate that an impairment of ldivgd assets held for use are present. We measiyrénpairment using observable market
values or discounted future cash flows from thatesl long-lived assets. The cash flow estimatesl@ubunt rates incorporate management’s
best estimates, using appropriate and customanyrgBns and projections at the date of evaluafitemagement periodically evaluates the
carrying value of long-lived assets, including pedp and equipment, capitalized software featutfeanements, other assets and intangible
assets. There were no impairments identified aorcbxd for the years ended December 31, 2008, 20006.

Other Assets

Other assets are comprised of the long term podi@ontent development fees and other assetsoofgaterm nature.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont inued)
Income Taxes

Income taxes have been provided using the liabiigghod in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounfior Income Taxes.” Under the
liability method, deferred tax assets and liatgfitare determined based on the temporary diffesdretveen the financial statement and tax
bases of assets and liabilities measured at tex that will be in effect for the year in which ttiéferences are expected to affect taxable
income. Under SFAS No. 109, all available evidehoth positive and negative, should be considaretetermine whether, based on the
weight of that evidence, a valuation allowancedsded. Future realization of the tax benefit oéxisting deductible temporary difference or
carryforward ultimately depends on the existenceufficient taxable income of the appropriate chmawithin the carryback or carryforward
period available under the tax law. SFAS No. 1@htdies four possible sources of taxable inconat thay be available under the tax law to
realize a tax benefit for deductible temporaryetiéhces and carryforwards: 1) future reversalxistiag taxable temporary differences, 2)
future taxable income exclusive of reversing terappdifferences and carryforwards, 3) taxable inedmprior carryback year(s) if carryback
is permitted under the tax law, and 4) tax-planrstigtegies that would, if necessary, be implenmetdgealize deductible temporary
differences or carryforwards prior to their expivat Management reviews the realizability of dedertax assets each period and has estab
a valuation allowance for the portion of its netetlieed tax assets that are not more likely tharempected to be realized.

The Company accounts for income tax uncertaintieieuthe provisions of FASB Interpretation No. 48¢counting for Uncertainty in Incon
Taxes — an interpretation of FASB Statement No.” {T9N 48"). This Interpretation clarifies the asanting for uncertainty in income taxes
recognized in the financial statements, and requicenpanies to use a more-likely-than-not recogmitireshold based on the technical merits
of the tax position taken. Tax positions that nthetmore-likely-thamot recognition threshold should be measured ieroi@ determine the t
benefit to be recognized in the financial statemmefihe Company expenses any penalties or intessgtiated with tax obligations as general
and administrative expenses and interest expeesgectively.

Commercial Support Liabilities
Commercial support liabilities represent grant fineceived from entities supporting educationavdigs, such as live events, in which we are
the accredited provider. The funds are unrestrijcad are primarily used to pay for expenses aagativith conducting the event.

Accrual for Service Credits

We maintain an accrual for service credits that wegur from our Internet-based learning producke &ccrual is estimated using
management’s judgment and analysis of potentiklaidoss associated with downtime, system perforweaor other contractual obligations
associated with our hosted applications. At DecerBlhe2008, and 2007, the accrual for service tsdmilance was approximately $345,000
and $394,000, respectively, and is included oratttdmpanying consolidated balance sheets undeafit®n “accrued liabilities.”
Advertising

We expense the costs of advertising as incurredéordance with SOP 93-7, “Reporting on Advertisdagts.” Advertising expense for the
years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006ppasxamately $284,000, $226,000, and $329,000,aetsely.

Shipping and Handling Costs

Shipping and handling costs that are associatddauit products and services are included in cost\@nues.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont inued)
Product Development Costs

Product development costs include internal andreateosts to develop and convert content for aterhet-based learning products. We
account for these assets in accordance with EI3keldlo. 00-2 “Accounting for Web Site Developmenst.” We capitalize the cost of
content developed by third parties where the lifigeetancy is greater than one year and the antédpzash flows from such content is expe

to exceed its cost. The Company capitalized apprately $85,000 and $317,000 of content developmests during 2008 and 2007,
respectively. Capitalized content development castsncluded in the accompanying consolidatedriz@l@heets under the captions “prepaid
development fees” and “other assets.” We amortizegent development over its expected life, whichdaerally one to three years. Content
development costs that have been capitalized &jecuo a periodic impairment review in accordangtl our policy. We did not capitalize
any internal web site development costs during 20008007, since the costs incurred were relatgdaioning or operation of such products and
sites.

Net Income Per Share

We compute net income per share in accordanceSH&S No. 128, “Earnings Per Share.” Under the mionis of Statement 128, basic net
income per share is computed by dividing the nediime available to common shareholders for the ddnjothe weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the period. Oilatet income per share is computed by dividingiéteincome for the period by the
weighted average number of common and common eguivshares outstanding during the period. Comnarivalent shares, composed of
incremental common shares issuable upon the erastistock options and warrants, escrowed or msttishares, and shares subject to ve
are included in diluted net income per share tcoetktent these shares are dilutive. Common equivaleares that have an anti-dilutive effect on
diluted net income per share have been excluded fine calculation of diluted weighted average shargstanding for the years ended
December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006.

Concentrations of Credit Risk and Significant Custoners

We place our temporary excess cash investmentglinduality, short-term money market instrumentstities, such investments may be in
excess of the FDIC insurance limits.

We sell our products and services to various comegan the healthcare industry that are locatetiénUnited States. We perform ongoing
credit evaluations of our customers’ financial citiod and generally require no collateral from ausers. We did not have any single customer
representing over 10% of net revenues during 20@®07. We had one significant customer who cornepripproximately 11%, or

$3.5 million, of net revenues during 2006.

Stock Based Compensation

The Company adopted SFAS No. 123(R), “Share-BasgchBnt” on January 1, 2006 and implemented it uiegnodified prospective
method for transition purposes. As of December2BD8, the Company has two stock based compengatos, which are described in Note
10. The Company accounts for stock based compensataccordance with SFAS No. 123(R). We use tlaelBScholes option pricing model
for calculating the fair value of awards issuedemalr stock based compensation plans. Stock lmmsegdensation cost is measured at the |
date, based on the fair value of the award thaltiimately expected to vest, and is recognizednasx@ense over the requisite service period.
Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following methods and assumptions were usedtimating fair value for financial instruments:

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted calde carrying amounts approximate the fair valueahse of the short-term maturity or short-term
nature of such instruments.

Accounts receivable, accounts receivi-unbilled, interest receivable, accounts payablgraed liabilities and deferred revenuhe carrying
amounts, net of any allowance for doubtful accousproximate the fair value because of the skewmnature of such instruments.

Investments in marketable securitiThe carrying amounts approximate the fair valueetias quoted market prices.

Promissory noteThe carrying amount approximates fair value basedusrent market rates for similar arrangementslaa to the Compan
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont inued)
Newly Issued Accounting Standards

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 14TfRjsiness Combinations” (“SFAS No. 141(R)"). SFA®8.NM41(R) establishes
principles and requirements for how an acquireogaizes and measures in its financial statemept&ltintifiable assets acquired, the liabili
assumed, contractual contingencies, any noncoinigdhterest in the acquiree and the goodwill arepli SFAS No. 141(R) changes the
accounting for acquisition-related restructuringtcaccruals and the recognition of changes in tlyeiiger’s income tax valuation allowance,
and no longer permits the capitalization of cersguisition costs. In addition the Statement distads disclosure requirements to enable the
evaluation of the nature and financial effectshef business combination. SFAS No. 141(R) is effeqtrospectively, except for certain
retrospective adjustments to deferred tax balarides Company’s consolidated financial statemenlisbgiimpacted by SFAS 141(R) in
relation to business combination activities subgegto January 1, 2009.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160ntdatrolling Interests in Consolidated Financiat&ments—an amendment of
Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51” (“SFAS No. I6(BFAS No. 160 establishes accounting and repgiiandards for ownership interests
in subsidiaries held by parties other than theqathe amount of consolidated net income attriblgtéo the parent and to the noncontrolling
interest, changes in a parent’s ownership inteegst,the valuation of retained noncontrolling egjinvestments when a subsidiary is
deconsolidated. SFAS No. 160 also establishesadisd requirements that clearly identify and dgiish between the interests of the parent
and the interests of the noncontrolling ownerssEtatement is effective beginning January 1, 260¢he Company. Management does not
anticipate that adoption of this new standard halve a material effect on the Company’s financadifoon, results of operations, or cash flows.

In April 2008, FASB Staff Position SFAS 142-3, “Betmination of the Useful Life of Intangible Asse{sFSP No. 142-3"), was issued. FSP
142-3 amends the factors that should be considergelveloping renewal or extension assumptions tse@termine the useful life of a
recognized intangible asset under SFAS No. 142pt34dll and Other Intangible Assets.” The adoptidi-8P 142-3 is effective beginning
January 1, 2009 for the Company. Management daesnticipate the adoption of this new standard halle a material effect on the
Company'’s financial position, results of operatiomscash flows.

2. BUSINESS COMBINATION

On March 12, 2007, the Company acquired all ofstioek of The Jackson Organization, Research Cargsl|tinc. (TJO). Consideration paid
to the seller of TJO included approximately $11ifiom in cash and 252,616 shares of our commonkstdhe Company also incurred direct,
incremental expenses associated with the acquisifiapproximately $690,000, which are includethia table below in “purchase price in
excess of net tangible assets acquired” and “cagh”plotal cash paid of $12.2 million includes legmid for TJO and direct expenses
associated with the acquisition. The allocatiopufchase price is as follows:

Estimated fair value of tangible assets acqu $ 2,856,48!
Estimated fair value of liabilities assum (4,410,21)
Purchase price in excess of net tangible assetsradi 14,704,47
Less fair value of stock issur (960,170
Cash paic 12,190,56
Less cash acquire (97,099
Net cash paid for acquisition, including exper $12,093,47

The purchase price in excess of the net tangilsletasicquired was allocated as follows:

Goodwill $10,829,47
Customer related intangibles (estimated life oheigears’ 3,575,00!
Non-compete agreement (estimated life of four ye 300,00(

The results of operations for TJO have been incudehe Company’s statement of income beginningdidd 3, 2007.
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2. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

The following unaudited combined results of openadi for the year ended December 31, 2007 givetdffabe operations of TJO as if the
acquisition had occurred as of January 1, 2007sd l@audited combined results of operations inchedt&in adjustments arising from the
acquisition such as adjustments for TJO sharehalgd®pensation, amortization of intangible assdisimation of acquisition costs incurred
TJO, and the elimination of interest income asgediavith cash paid for TJO by the Company. Thefprma combined results of operations
not purport to represent what the Company’s residltperations would have been had such transactiofact occurred at the beginning of the
period presented or to project the Company’s resaflbperations in any future period.

Revenues, ne $46,499,40
Net income $ 4,366,94
Net income per shar

Basic $ 0.2C
Diluted $ 0.1¢

3. SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common Stock

We are authorized to issue up to 75 million shafesommon stock. The number of common shares isanddutstanding as of December 31,
2008 and 2007 was 21,382,055 and 22,315,485, ndsglgcDuring September 2007, our Board of Direstauthorized the Company to
purchase up to $3.0 million of its common stockravene year period. During 2008, we completedstbek repurchase plan resulting in a
cumulative total of 1,119,900 shares purchased awarage price of $2.68 per share.

Preferred Stock

We are authorized to issue up to 10 million shafgweferred stock in one or more series, havimggrétative voting powers, designations,
preferences, rights and qualifications, limitatiamsestrictions, and other terms as the Boardioddfors may fix in providing for the issuance
of such series, without any vote or action of thareholders. During 2000, all outstanding shargeefierred stock were converted into
common stock in connection with our initial pubditfering (IPO). There have been no shares of predestock outstanding since our IPO.

Warrants

In connection with a distribution agreement we eddnto during 1999, we provided a business pastith a warrant to purchase 245,032
shares of our common stock at $4.06 per sharewBheant expires in June 2009, and no portion oftbek warrant has been exercised as of
December 31, 2008.
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4. NET INCOME PER SHARE

The following table sets forth the computation asie and diluted net income per share:

Year Ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006
Numerator:

Net income $ 2,854,79 $ 4,087,20 $ 2,499,68
Denominator

Weightec-average shares outstandi

Basic 21,707,36 21,998,84 21,576,55

Employee stock options and escrowed sh 496,95( 702,15 782,09!

Diluted 22,204,31 22,700,99 22,358,64
Net income per shar

Basic $ 0.1: $ 0.1¢ $ 0.12

Diluted $ 0.1% $ 0.1¢ $ 0.11

For the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, 0f] #te calculation of weighted average and egeitahares excluded options and
warrants that were anti-dilutive. The equivalentoaon shares related to such options and warrams 813,082 in 2008, 1,915,641 in 2007,
and 1,964,460 in 2006.

5. GOODWILL

We account for goodwill under the provisions oft8taent 142, which specifies the approach and tifongvaluating impairment of intangit
assets, and also requires that goodwill be testednfpairment at least annually using a fair valethod. We test goodwill for impairment
using both income and market based models. Thaitpoh used to determine the fair value of our répgrunits is sensitive to estimates and
assumptions associated with cash flow from opematand its growth, discount rates, and reportirigtarminal values. If these estimates or
their related assumptions change in the futuremarg be required to record additional impairmentrghs, which could adversely impact our
operating results for the period in which such edeination is made. We perform our annual impaim@valuation of goodwill during the
fourth quarter of each year and as changes in éaxt<ircumstances indicate impairment exists. i@uour annual impairment evaluation in
fourth quarter of 2008 and 2007, the results ofgnodwill impairment analysis indicated the faitueof our reporting units exceeded their
carrying values. Therefore no impairment existeDetember 31, 2008 and 2007.

On March 12, 2007 we acquired TJO. We recorded wiloof $10,829,471 in connection with this acqtisn. The changes in the carrying
amount of goodwill for the years ended Decembe2808 and 2007 are as follows:

Learning Research Total
Balance at January 1, 20 $3,306,68! $17,840,17 $21,146,86
Changes in carrying value of goodv — — —
Balance at December 31, 2C $3,306,68: $17,840,17 $21,146,86

Learning Research Total
Balance at January 1, 20 $3,306,68! $ 7,010,70! $10,317,39
Changes in carrying value of goodv — 10,829,47 10,829,47
Balance at December 31, 2C $3,306,68! $17,840,17 $21,146,86
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6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

All intangible assets have been evaluated in aecare with Statement 142 and are considered tofirdteeuseful lives. Customer related
intangible assets include contract rights, custdists, and customer relationships associated athacquisitions of DMR and TJO. Other
intangible assets include non-competition agreesasgociated with the same acquired entities. fitaagibles are being amortized over their
estimated useful lives, ranging from one to eigrarg. Amortization of intangible assets was appnakély $967,000, $926,000, and $508,000
for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 an@l, 288§pectively.

Identifiable intangible assets are comprised offthlewing:

As of December 31, 2008 As of December 31, 2007
Accumulated Accumulated
Gross Amount Amortization Net Gross Amount Amortization Net
Customer relate $ 9,915,00! $(5,342,09) $4,572,90: $ 9,915,00! $(4,470,22) $5,444,77
Content 3,500,001 (3,500,001 — 3,500,001 (3,500,001 —
Other 972,14 (807,22) 164,92( 972,14 (712,33) 259,81
Total $14,387,14 $(9,649,32)  $4,737,82.  $14,387,14 $(8,682,55)  $5,704,58

Estimated amortization expense for the years endegember 31, is as follows:

2009 $ 946,87!
2010 946,87!
2011 886,79:
2012 871,87!
2013 549,63:
Thereaftel 535,77(

Total $4,737,82.

7. CONTENT RIGHTS AND DEFERRED SERVICE CREDITS

During 2007 and 2006, we completed updates andterance required to publish certain courseware dvageone of our customers and were
provided the right to distribute and resell suchrseware. In exchange for receipt of an exclusoenke to distribute and resell this
courseware, we provided the customer with serviedits that can be used to make future purchasesrgiroducts and services. We accou
for this transaction in accordance with Accountifrinciples Board Opinion No. 29 “Accounting for Nnanetary Transactionsis amended |
SFAS No. 153, “Exchanges of Nonmonetary Assetsé ifiitial value assigned to the content rights treddeferred service credits was
$191,667 in 2007 and $904,167 in 2006, which represl the estimated fair value of the assets naihgd. The content rights have been fully
amortized as of December 31, 2008.

As of December 31, 2008, issued but unexpired tegliproximated $376,000, and expire on varioussddirough May 2010. The service
credits are classified within accrued liabilities @ur consolidated balance sheets as of Decemb@088 and 2007. Additional service credits
may be provided in the future if the customer pdesi additional courseware rights to us. Revenueseiwices provided in exchange for ser
credits will be recognized in accordance with awenue recognition policies.
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8. BUSINESS SEGMENTS

We provide our services to healthcare organizatipharmaceutical and medical device companiesptret members within the healthcare
industry. Our services are primarily focused ondbbvery of education and training products anwises (HealthStream Learning), as well as
survey and research services (HealthStream Re3ebledithStream Learning products and servicesideebur Internet-based HealthStream
Learning Center®, authoring tools, courseware sifitgens, online training and content developmentjne sales training courses, live events,
HospitalDirect® and other products focused on etiocand training to serve professionals that waithin healthcare organizations.

Effective with the acquisition of TJO in March 2Q@ve launched HealthStream Resedihvhich provides a wide range of quality and
satisfaction surveys, data analyses of surveytesand other researtfased measurement tools focused on patients, eagdpphysicians, a
members of the community. In addition, at that tinwe changed our organizational structure, appajrai President of HealthStream Research
who reports to our Chief Executive Officer (CEOUr@EO is also our chief operating decision makering the first quarter of 2007, we
began reporting and measuring performance bas#teatelivery of learning services and researchicesy Accordingly, we began disclosing
segment performance under the Learning and Ressagrhents.

The following is our business segment informatieroband for the years ended December 31, 2008, 200 2006. We measure segment
performance based on operating income (loss) b&fomme taxes and prior to the allocation of certairporate overhead expenses, interest
income, interest expense, and depreciation. DG, we revised our measure of segment performamtdegan allocating building,
telecom, and utility expenses to Learning, whictl peeviously been included in Unallocated. We halge restated historical periods for both
Learning and Unallocated to reflect the allocatidthese corporate overhead expenses. The Unatbcamponent below includes corporate

functions, such as accounting, human resourceal, liegestor relations, administrative, and exeaipersonnel, as well as depreciation, a
portion of amortization, and certain other expengdsch are not currently allocated in measuringnsent performance.

Year ended December 31, 2008

Learning Research Unallocated Consolidated

Revenues, n¢ $32,831,64 $18,767,90 $ = $51,599,54
Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and ametitin) 10,616,57 9,036,87 — 19,653,45
Product developmel 4,634,66: 1,035,29i — 5,669,95.
Sales and marketir 7,087,09 3,522,92 210,04( 10,820,06
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,714,11! 1,002,52' 1,105,62. 4,822,26!
Other general and administrati 1,617,43 1,889,97. 4,644,88! 8,152,29.
Segment income (loss) from operati $ 7,161,75i $ 2,280,31 $(6,960,56) $ 2,481,51
*Segment asse $16,027,45 $27,018,00 $9,751,43 $52,796,88
Purchases of property and equipm $ 594,81 $ 118,32 $ 425,45. $ 1,138,59
Payments associated with capitalized software featohancemen $ 513,35¢ $ 466,98 $ — $ 980,43

Year ended December 31, 2007

Learning Research Unallocated Consolidated

Revenues, n¢ $27,461,50 $16,487,75 $ = $43,949,26
Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and awaditin) 9,272,55! 6,889,94 — 16,162,50
Product developmel 3,668,65. 515,60! 123,48: 4,307,73!
Sales and marketir 6,362,10! 2,735,56! 114,73: 9,212,40!
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,627,56. 926,39: 1,949,22 4,503,18I
Other general and administrati 1,095,21 2,364,93 4,387,90. 7,848,05!
Segment income (loss) from operatic $ 5,435,40 $ 3,055,31. $(6,575,34) $ 1,915,37
*Segment asse $17,270,54 $26,284,09 $ 9,806,82! $53,361,45
Purchases of property and equipm $ 807,45( $ 46,70 $ 410,41 $ 1,264,56!
Payments associated with capitalized software fea&nohancemen $ 2,460,25. $ 106,18 $ — $ 2,566,43
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8. BUSINESS SEGMENTS (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2006

Learning Research Unallocated Consolidated

Revenues, ne $25,069,65 $ 6,713,81 $ = $31,783,46
Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and awaditin) 8,979,45! 1,889,84 — 10,869,30
Product developmel 2,988,86. 369,68: 144,24¢ 3,502,791
Sales and marketir 5,948,311 883,97: 187,76: 7,020,05:
Depreciation and amortizatic 973,85¢ 508,33. 1,406,97 2,889,16!
Other general and administrati 1,214,15: 633,19( 3,745,68. 5,593,02
Segment income (loss) from operatic $ 4,965,00! $ 2,428,79 $(5,484,66) $ 1,909,13
*Segment asse $15,167,47 $10,620,78 $15,220,23 $41,008,48
Purchases of property and equipm $ 865,41¢ $ 24,34 $ 510,88l $ 1,400,63
Payments associated with capitalized software feaohancemen $ 2,274,68. $ — $ — $ 2,274,68

* Segment assets include restricted cash, acs@unut unbilled receivables, prepaid and other ntiassets, other assets, capitalized
software feature enhancements, certain propertyegoghment, and intangible assets. Investmentsaik@table securities and cash and
cash equivalents are not allocated to individughsents, and are included within Unallocated. A sigant portion of property and
equipment assets are included within Unalloce

9. INCOME TAXES

The (benefit) provision for income taxes is comgi®f:

Year Ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006
Current federa $ 19,45( $  44,36¢ $28,04¢
Current statt 54,92¢ — —
Deferred federe (335,94 (1,780,40) —
Deferred stat (39,529 (209,459 —
(Benefit) provision for income taxe $(301,08Y) $(1,945,49)) $28,04¢

Income tax (benefit) provision differs from the aim¢s computed by applying the federal statutorg oit34% to the income before income
taxes as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006
Federal tax provision at the statutory r $ 868,36( $ 728,17t $ 859,42
State income tax provision, net of federal ber 135,88 113,08: 102,68:
Difference related to warran — 943,01¢ —

Other 335,64 197,98¢ 254,62:
Decrease in valuation allowan (1,640,97) (3,927,761 (1,188,68)
(Benefit) provision for income taxt $ (301,089  $(1,945,49) $ 28,04«

As of December 31, 2008, management concludedatpattion of its deferred tax assets would be zedliand to date, has recognized
$2,365,329 of deferred tax assets through the sal/ef a portion of the valuation allowance. Theognition of this asset was recorded in our
statements of income as an income tax benefit 853%7 and $1,989,862 for the years ended Dece&ih@008 and 2007, respectively, an
shown net of current tax expense. The balance sth&scember 31, 2008 includes current deferrecdsarts of $356,987 and non current
deferred tax assets of $2,008,342. As a resultiof tax deductions related to stock based compgemsaip to $158,922 of future reductions of
the valuation allowance would be recognized asarease to common stock. At December 31, 2008 @6d, 2 valuation allowance exists for
the remaining portion of deferred tax assets, dubé uncertainty of realizing these assets irfuhee.
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9. INCOME TAXES (continued)

As of December 31, 2008, we had federal and s&tteperating loss carryforwards of $38,377,012$2@1887,616, respectively. These loss
carryforwards will expire in years 2012 through 202s of December 31, 2008, $2,698,648 of our petating loss carryforwards is
attributable to the exercise of stock options, émealized, the tax benefit will be recorded adrarease to additional paid-in capital. Our net
operating loss carryforwards are subject to anhmdtiations under Internal Revenue Code Section 382 annual limitations could result in
the expiration of a portion of our net operatingd@nd tax credit carryforwards before they arg futilized. During the year, the valuation
allowance decreased by $1,638,978, which was ceegpof a $1,653,886 decrease related to currees &xd an increase of $14,908 relate
the exercise of stock options.

We have research and development tax credit cawgfols of $285,787 that expire in varying amouhtsigh 2024. We have alternative
minimum tax credit carryforwards of $104,144 thia available to offset future regular tax liabégiand they do not expire. Federal income
payments of $5,300, $43,000, and $21,000 were madeg the years ended December 31, 2008, 20072@D@, respectively. State income
tax payments of $41,560, $-0-, and $-0- were madmg the years ended December 31, 2008, 20072@0@, respectively.

As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Company’salatated balance sheets did not reflect a lighitit uncertain tax positions, nor any
accrued penalties or interest associated with irctax uncertainties. The Company is subject torimetaxation at the federal and various state
levels. The Company is subject to U.S. federakteaminations for tax years through 2008, subjethéostatute of limitations. The Company
has no income tax examinations in process.

Deferred federal and state income taxes reflechéteéax effects of temporary differences betwéencarrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and the amounéglder income tax purposes. Significant componehtieferred tax assets are as follows:

December 31,

2008 2007
Current deferred tax asse
Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 40,48¢ $ 23,56¢
Accrued liabilities 388,33 476,32t
Deferred revenu — 606,41(
Net operating loss carryforwar 1,171,08 755,66:
1,599,90! 1,861,961
Less: Valuation allowanc (1,242,91) (1,501,65)
Net Current deferred tax ass $ 356,98 $ 360,31
Noncurrent deferred tax asse
Depreciatior $ 30,387 $ 278,21
Deductible goodwil 72,431 440,48(
Difference related to warran 284,37( 284,37(
Research and development cre: 285,78’ 285,78’
Stock based compensati 158,92: 116,28!
Alternative minimum tax credit 104,14 93,91(
Net operating loss carryforwar 13,071,55 13,710,31
14,007,60. 15,209,36
Less: Valuation allowanc (10,883,93) (12,266,17)
Net Noncurrent deferred tax ass $ 3,123,66! $ 2,943,18!
Noncurrent deferred tax liabilitie
Nondeductible intangible asst $ 1,11532. $ 1,313,63
Total Noncurrent deferred tax liabiliti $ 1,115322 $ 1,313,633
Net Noncurrent deferred tax as $ 2,008,34. $ 1,629,55
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10. STOCK BASED COMPENSATION

Total stock based compensation expense recordstordance with Statement 123(R), for the years@mkcember 31, 2008, 2007, and Z
which is recorded in our statements of incomesifodows:

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and amatitin) $ 45,47¢ $ 48,50: $ 53,79(
Product developmel 157,96¢ 150,19: 142,05¢
Sales and marketir 199,83: 171,40( 127,95:
Other general and administrati 368,28( 372,25( 358,26°
Total stock based compensation expe $771,56( $742,34- $682,06¢

Stock Option Plan

Our 2000 Stock Incentive Plan (the Plan) authorireggrant of options or other forms of stock basgmipensation to employees, officers,
directors and others, and such grants must be aggtay the Compensation Committee of the Boardiédbors. Options granted under the
Plan have terms of no more than ten years, wittaicerestrictions. The Plan allows the Compensaflommittee of the Board of Directors to
determine the vesting period of each grant. Thénggeriod of the options granted ranges from irdiaite vesting (generally associated with
our board of directors’ options) to annual vestingr four years, beginning one year after the gdate (generally for employee and officer
options). As of December 31, 2008, 1,585,758 shafresissued common stock remained reserved fardujrants under the Plan. The
Company issues new shares of common stock wheongpdire exercised.

The weighted average fair value of options gramtad estimated using the Black-Scholes method. @hges of assumptions used for these
estimates include:

2008 2007 2006
Risk-free interest rat 2.63- 3.5% 4.45- 4.8(% 4.55-5.01%
Expected dividend yiel 0.C% 0.C% 0.C%
Expected life (in years 5to ¢ 5to ¢ 5to ¢
Expected forfeiture rat 0-20% 0-30% 0-20%
Volatility 65% 75% 75%

Risk-free interest rates based on the U.S. Treasury rate in effect atithe of the option grant having a term equivalerthe expected life of
the option.

Expected dividend yiel® zero because the Company has not made any divjgyments in its history and does not plan togiaiglends in
the foreseeable future.

Expected lifeis the period of time the option is expected toagnoutstanding, and is based on historical expeeeThe contractual option life
ranges from eight to ten years. We estimate thearg life of options granted to members of manageno be five years and eight years for
directors.

Expected forfeiture ratis the estimated percentage of options grantedatfeanot expected to become fully vested. Thisredg is based on
historical experience, and will be adjusted as seag to match the actual forfeiture experience.

Volatility is the measure of the amount by which the priepsected to fluctuate. We estimate volatility bagedhe actual historical volatility
of our common stock, and we believe future volgtiiill be similar to our historical volatility exgrience based on our measurements.

We amortize the fair value of all stock based awamad a straight-line basis over the requisite serperiod, which generally is the vesting
period.
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10. STOCK BASED COMPENSATION (continued)

A progression of activity and various other infotiog relative to stock options for the year endest@mber 31, 2008 is presented in the table
below.

Weighted-
Common Average Aggregate

Shares Exercise Price Intrinsic Value
Outstandinc— beginning of periot 2,538,80 $ 3.3¢€
Granted 498,00( 2.9z
Exercisec (106,167) 1.9¢
Expired (319,900 7.0¢€
Forfeited (183,95() 3.22
Outstandinc— end of perioc 2,426,79! $ 2.8E $ 725,35
Exercisable at end of peric 1,534,04! $ 2.65 $ 725,23t

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table abopeesents the total difference between the Comparigsing stock price on December 31, 2
(the last trading day of the year) of $2.33 anddpigon exercise price, multiplied by the numbemathe-money options as of December 31,
2008. As of December 31, 2008, total unrecognizedpensation expense related to non-vested stoadngpias $1,192,503, net of estimated
forfeitures, with a weighted average expense reitiogrperiod of 2.5 years.

Other information relative to option activity dugithe years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, andi2@86ollows:

Year Ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006
Weighted average grant date fair value of stocloaptgrantet $ 1.6¢ $ 2.4¢ $ 201
Total fair value of stock options vest $629,52¢ $682,08- $582,18¢
Total intrinsic value of stock options exercis $ 61,617 $144,82¢ $663,20:
Cash proceeds from exercise of stock opt $210,92¢ $248,51° $490,46°

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Our Employee Stock Purchase Plan (Purchase Pleoipiorates the provisions of Section 423 of therlml Revenue Code. Under the
Purchase Plan, 1,000,000 shares of common stoeklieen reserved for purchase by employees. Thé&edlan provides for annual offer
periods of twelve months to eligible employees. ehttie Purchase Plan, eligible employees can psectieough payroll deductions, the les

of up to 15% of their eligible base compensatio,600 shares of common stock, at a price equiv&ed5% of the lesser of the beginning or
end of Purchase Plan year price. During 2008, B3sh@res were purchased under the plan at $2.4hpeg, and during 2007, 37,685 shares
were purchased under the plan at $3.23 per shhegeTvere 532,981 shares available for issuanceruhd Purchase Plan as of December 31,
2008. In accordance with the provisions of SFAS N28(R), the Company recognized $24,855 and $33#86fck based compensation
expense for the Purchase Plan during the yearsiddeleember 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

On February 9, 2009, the Company terminated the &ta deregistered the unsold and unissued staregning in the Plan.

11. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN
401(k) Plan

We have a defined-contribution employee benefit [(#01(k) Plan) incorporating provisions of Sectitiii(k) of the Internal Revenue Code.
Our employees must have attained the age of 2hawel completed thirty days of service to be eligyiiol participate in the 401(k) Plan. Under
the provisions of the 401(k) Plan, a plan membey make contributions, on a tax-deferred basistmeixceed 20% of compensation, subject
to IRS limitations. The Company has not providedahiag contributions through December 31, 2008.
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12. DEBT
At December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Company hatbtlesving debt outstanding:

December 31,

2008 2007
Promissory Nott $1,031,03 $1,737,73!
Less current portio (724,09 (706,699
Long-term debt (net of current portio $ 306,94: $1,031,03

Promissory Note

During 2007, the Company financed the purchas@pfaimately $2.1 million in multi-year softwaredinses. As a result of this transaction,
the Company entered into a promissory note loaeeagent which is scheduled to be repaid in 36 pajsrre on a monthly basis beginning
July 1, 2007. The promissory note bears intereahannual rate of 2.32%, and is unsecured. Thep@oynmay not prepay the loan without
consent from the lender, and if a prepayment reqaeganted by the lender, a prepayment fee magsbessed. As of December 31, 2008, the
amount outstanding under this loan agreement wA8$037.

Scheduled principal payments for debt outstandisgf December 31, 2008 for the next five yearstharkafter are as follows:

2009 $ 724,09!
2010 306,94
2011 —
2012 —
2013 —
Thereaftel —

Total $1,031,03

Revolving Credit Facility

The Company maintains a Loan Agreement (the “RenglCredit Facility”) with SunTrust Bank (“SunTrusin the aggregate principal
amount of $15.0 million, which matures on July 2@09. The obligations under the revolving crediilfty are guaranteed by each of the
Company'’s subsidiaries. The Company’s borrowingsenthe revolving credit facility bear interestatIBOR rate generally defined as the
sum of (i) a variable rate of interest equal to3heDay LIBOR Rate plus (ii) 150 basis points penam. Principal is payable in full on the
maturity date. The Company is required to pay aradment fee of 10 basis points per annum of theapedaily unused portion of the
revolving credit facility.

The purpose of the revolving credit facility is fpeneral working capital needs, permitted acqoisgi(as defined in the Loan Agreement), and
for stock repurchase and/or redemption transactiwaitsthe Company may authorize.

The revolving credit facility contains certain coagts that, among other things, restrict additiaméébtedness, liens and encumbrances,
changes to the character of the Company’s busiaegsisitions, asset dispositions, mergers andatiolasions, sale or discount of receivables,
creation or acquisitions of additional subsidigreasd other matters customarily restricted in sagteements.

In addition, the revolving credit facility requirése Company to meet certain financial tests, iiclg, without limitation:

. a maximum total leverage ratio (consolidated debgolidated EBITDA) of 2.0 to 1.0; ai

. funded debt to total capitalization may not excée®o
As of December 31, 2008, the Company believes stiwaompliance with all covenants. There were alafices outstanding on the revolving
credit facility as of December 31, 2008.
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13. LEASES

As of December 31, 2008, we lease office facilitredlashville, TN, Laurel, MD, and Franklin, TN, der agreements that expire before or
during March 2012. Some lease agreements contauispons for escalating rent payments over théanierms of the lease. We account for
these leases by recognizing rent expense on thigtstiine basis and adjusting the deferred reptase liability for the difference between the
straight-line rent expense and the amount of raitt. he Company also leases certain office equipmeder operating leases. Total rent
expense under all operating leases was approxiybiteb02,000, $1,410,000, and $897,000, for thesyeaded December 31, 2008, 2007, and
2006, respectively. We also lease certain compntdroffice equipment from third parties which aceaunted for as capital leases.

Future rental payment commitments at December @18 2nder capital and non-cancelable operatingfeagith initial terms of one year or
more, are as follows:

Capital Lease: Operating Lease:
2009 $ 2238 $ 1,018,551
2010 9,07z 656,53:
2011 4,49¢ 569,17:
2012 — 117,50:
2013 — —
Total minimum lease paymer 35,95 $ 2,361,72
Less amounts representing intel (2,58%)
Present value of minimum lease payments (inclug2@592 classified as currel $ 33,37

The carrying value of assets under capital leagkigh are included with owned assets in the accayipg consolidated balance sheets, was
$24,250 and $128,773 at December 31, 2008 and 28§pectively. Amortization of the assets undercihygital leases is included in
depreciation expense on the accompanying consetidaitements of income.

14. LITIGATION

In the ordinary course of business, the Compaifipia time to time involved in various pending legations. The litigation process is
inherently uncertain and it is possible that treohetion of such matters might have a material esb/effect upon the financial condition and /
or results of operations of the Company. Howevethe opinion of the Company’s management, mattenently pending or threatened
against the Company are not expected to have aialadverse effect on the financial position wukes of operations of the Company.

15. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On February 9, 2009, the Company terminated thel&mep Stock Purchase Plan and deregistered thédusmsd unissued shares remaining in
the Purchase Plan.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcéunting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A(T). Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

HealthStream'’s chief executive officer and printijy@ancial officer have reviewed and evaluated ¢ffectiveness of the Compamsydisclosur
controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 18a}Hnd 15d-15(e) promulgated under the Secuitiehange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange
Act”)) as of December 31, 2008. Based on that etadn, the chief executive officer and principaldcial officer have concluded that
HealthStream'’s disclosure controls and procedurse wifective to ensure that the information reegito be disclosed by the Company in the
reports the Company files or submits under the BRgk Act is recorded, processed, summarized amdteelwithin the time periods specified
in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rutelsfarms, and the information required to be disetbin the reports the Company files or
submits under the Exchange Act was accumulate¢aminunicated to the Company’s management, incluigéngrincipal executive and
principal financial officer, or persons performisignilar functions, as appropriate to allow timebctsions regarding required disclosure.

Management’s Report On Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@gorting as defined in Rules 13a-15(f)
and 15d-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Adi94, and for assessing the effectiveness of iateantrol over financial reporting. The
Company'’s internal control over financial reportisglesigned to provide reasonable assurance iiagate reliability of financial reporting

and the preparation of financial statements foemsal purposes in accordance with generally acdegteounting principles. The Company’s
internal control over financial reporting includd®se policies and procedures that: (1) pertatheanaintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transaicsi and dispositions of the assets of the Compg@pyrovide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to perepidration of financial statements in accordanch génerally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the Compenipeing made only in accordance with authorizatioihmanagement and directors of the
Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurancedieggsrevention or timely detection of unauthorizedjuisition, use, or disposition of the
Company’s assets that could have a material effethe financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or detmisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agjext to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Cgtapaternal control over financial reporting asi@écember 31, 2008. In making this
assessment, management used the criteria sebfpttie Committee of Sponsoring Organizations offtteadway Commission (COSO) in
Internal Control-Integrated Framework. Managemeassessment included an evaluation of the desigarahternal control over financial
reporting and testing of the operational effectessnof our internal control over financial repggtiManagement believes that, as of
December 31, 2008, the Company’s internal contvel dinancial reporting was effective based on ¢hosteria.

This annual report does not include an attestagport of the Company’s registered public accognfirm regarding internal control over
financial reporting. Management’s report was ndject to attestation by the Company'’s registerdalipaccounting firm pursuant to
temporary rules of the Securities and Exchange Cigsiom that permit the Company to provide only nggmaents report in this annual repc
Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in HealthStream’s internarobover financial reporting that occurred durthg fourth quarter of 2008 that have
materially affected, or that are reasonably likelynaterially affect, HealthStream’s internal cohwver financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.
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PART Il

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governze

Information as to directors of the Company and ctafe governance is incorporated by reference framnformation contained in our proxy
statement for the 2009 Annual Meeting of Sharehsltlgat we will file with the Securities and ExclganCommission within 120 days of the

end of the fiscal year to which this report relatesrsuant to General Instruction G(3), certainimfation concerning executive officers of the
Company is included in Part | of this Form 10-Kdenthe caption “Executive Officers of the Registra

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Incorporated by reference from the information e@med in our proxy statement for the 2009 AnnuakMwey of Shareholders that we will file
with the Securities and Exchange Commission witf#f days of the end of the fiscal year to whick teport relates.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners ahnagement and Related Stockholder Matters

Incorporated by reference from the information e@me¢d in our proxy statement for the 2009 AnnuakMey of Shareholders that we will file
with the Securities and Exchange Commission witt#ifi days of the end of the fiscal year to whick teport relates.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, abitector Independence

Incorporated by reference from the information e@med in our proxy statement for the 2009 AnnuakMey of Shareholders that we will file
with the Securities and Exchange Commission witt#ifi days of the end of the fiscal year to whick teport relates.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

Incorporated by reference from the information e@med in our proxy statement for the 2009 AnnuakMey of Shareholders that we will file

with the Securities and Exchange Commission witf#@ days of the end of the fiscal year to whick teport relates.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

(a)(1) Financial Statements

Reference is made to the financial statementsdeclun Item 8 to this Report on Form 10-K.

(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedules

All schedules are omitted because they are notagtydé or the required information is shown in @ensolidated Financial Statements ol
notes thereto.

(a)(3) Exhibits

Number Description

2.1 Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 2&,280and among HealthStream, Inc., Mel B. Thompmwh Data
Management & Research, Ir

2203 Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 1Z,,280and among HealthStream, Inc., The Jacksoartirgtion, Researc
Consultants, Inc., David Jackson and the Jacksamit@@hle Remainder Tru

*3.1 Form of Fourth Amended and Restated Charter oftH8team, Inc

*3.2 Form of Amended and Restated Bylaws of HealthStréam

*4.1 Form of certificate representing the common stackpar value per share, of HealthStream,

4.2 Reference is made to Exhibits 3.1 and

*4.3 Warrant to purchase common stock of HealthStream, tated June 14, 1999, held by GE Medical Syst

*4.4 Common Stock Purchase Agreement between Healtm$ttea. and Healtheon/WebMD Corporati

*10.17 1994 Employee Stock Option Plan, effective as ofil&b, 1994

*10.2" 2000 Stock Incentive Plan, effective as of Apri| 2000

*10.3" Form of Indemnification Agreeme

*10.47 () Executive Employment Agreement, dated July 21, 26@Bveen HealthStream, Inc. and Robert A. Fris

*10.5 Lease dated March 27, 1995, as amended June 6ab@9September 22, 1998, between Cummins Stati@) bk landlord, and
NewOrder Media, Inc., as tene

*+10.6 Development and Distribution Agreement between th&iteam, Inc. and GE Medical Syste

*+10.7 Education Services Provider Agreement dated Octbp2®01 between HealthStream, Inc. and HCA Infeional echnology &
Services, Inc., as amend

~10.8@) Form of Director Stock Option Agreeme

~10.9@ Form of Employee and Executive Officer Stock Optigreemen

10.10) Loan Agreement dated July 21, 2006 between Hea#hBt, Inc. and SunTrust Ba

10.116) First Amendment to Loan Agreement dated Februarn2@67 between HealthStream, Inc. and SunTrust |

10.120 Second Amendment to Loan Agreement dated July 37 Between HealthStream, Inc. and SunTrust |

710.13 Summary of Director and Executive Officer Compeiuse

211 Subsidiaries of HealthStream, It

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing

31.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer Purstido Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 200z

31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursudo Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 200z

32.1 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 200z

32.2 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 2002

+ Confidential treatment was received, with respe certain portions of this document. Such podiwere omitted and filed separately
with the Securities and Exchange Commiss

* Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Registration Statement on For-1, as amended (Reg. No. -88939).
A Management contract or compensatory plan or arraagt

(1) Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Formr-K, dated March 29, 200!

(2) Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Forr-K, dated March 12, 200

(3) Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Form-K, dated July 25, 200!

(4) Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on dumual Report on Form -K, dated March 30, 200

(5) Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Forn-K, dated July 25, 200t

(6) Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Formr-K, dated February 20, 200

(7) Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Forr-K, dated July 24, 200°
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regidthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduolp authorized on this 27th day of March 2009.
HEALTHSTREAM, INC.

By: /s/ ROBERTA. FRIST, \R.
Robert A. Frist, Jr.
Chief Executive Office

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, this report has been signed bydtowing persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities and on the datisated:

Signature Title(s) Date
/s/ RoBERTA. FRIST, R. President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman March 27, 2009
Robert A. Frist, Jr (Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ GERARD M. HAYDEN, (R. Chief Financial Officer and Senior Vice Presid March 27, 200¢
Gerard M. Hayden, J (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
/s/ JaMES DANIELL Director March 27, 200¢
James Danie
/s/ THoMPSONDENT Director March 27, 2009
Thompson Den
/s/ FRANK GORDON Director March 27, 200¢
Frank Gordor
/s/ EFFREY L. MCLAREN Director March 27, 2009
Jeffrey L. McLarer
/s/ DALE PoLLEY Director March 27, 200¢
Dale Polley
/s/ LINDA REBROVICK Director March 27, 2009
Linda Rebrovick
/s/ MICHAEL SHMERLING Director March 27, 200¢
Michael Shmerlinc
/s/WILLIAM STEAD Director March 27, 200¢

William Stead
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Exhibit

Number Description

210 Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 2&,280and among HealthStream, Inc., Mel B. Thompswh Data
Management & Research, Ir

2.2 Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 17, 280and among HealthStream, Inc., The Jacksoartirgtion, Research
Consultants, Inc., David Jackson and the Jacksamit@hle Remainder Tru

*3.1 Form of Fourth Amended and Restated Charter oftH8akam, Inc

*3.2 Form of Amended and Restated Bylaws of HealthStréam

*4.1 Form of certificate representing the common stockpar value per share, of HealthStream,

4.2 Reference is made to Exhibits 3.1 and

*4.3 Warrant to purchase common stock of HealthStream, tdated June 14, 1999, held by GE Medical Syst

*4.4 Common Stock Purchase Agreement between Healtm$ttea. and Healtheon/WebMD Corporati

*10.17 1994 Employee Stock Option Plan, effective as ofil&®b, 1994

*10.2° 2000 Stock Incentive Plan, effective as of Apri| 2000

*10.3" Form of Indemnification Agreeme

*10.4" ) Executive Employment Agreement, dated July 21, 26@5veen HealthStream, Inc. and Robert A. Fris

*10.5 Lease dated March 27, 1995, as amended June 6 ah@9Geptember 22, 1998, between Cummins Stati@) bk landlord, and
NewOrder Media, Inc., as tene

*+10.6 Development and Distribution Agreement between th&iteam, Inc. and GE Medical Syste

*+10.7 Education Services Provider Agreement dated Octbp2001 between HealthStream, Inc. and HCA Infdional echnology &

Systems, Inc., as amend

~10.84 Form of Director Stock Option Agreeme
710.9@ Form of Employee and Executive Officer Stock Optkgreemen

10.100) Loan Agreement dated July 21, 2006 between Hea#hBt, Inc. and SunTrust Ba

10.11©) First Amendment to Loan Agreement dated Februar®@67 between HealthStream, Inc. and SunTrust |

10.12(M Second Amendment to Loan Agreement dated July @37 Between HealthStream, Inc. and SunTrust |

710.13 Summary of Director and Executive Officer Compeiuse

211 Subsidiaries of HealthStream, It

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing

31.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer Pursti@o Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 200z

31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursitdo Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 200z

32.1 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 200z
32.2 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 200z
+  Confidential treatment was received with respecteidain portions of this document. Such portiomseromitted and filed separately w

1)
()
®3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)

the Securities and Exchange Commiss

Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Registration Statement on For-1, as amended (Reg. No. -88939).
Management contract or compensatory plan or arraagt

Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Formr-K, dated March 29, 200!
Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Formr-K, dated March 12, 200
Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Form-K, dated July 25, 200!
Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on dumual Report on Form -K, dated March 30, 200
Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Form-K, dated July 25, 200t
Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Forn-K, dated February 20, 200
Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Forn-K, dated July 24, 200



EXHIBIT 10.13

HealthStream, Inc. (the “Company”)
Summary of Director and Executive Officer Compensabn

I. Director Compensation. Directors who are employees of the Company daoewsive additional compensation for serving asalars of the
Company. The following table sets forth currenesadf cash compensation for the Company’s non-erapldirectors.

Retainers and Fees 2009
Board meeting fe $1,00¢
Committee chair meeting fe $1,00(C
Committee member meeting f $ 50C

In addition to the cash compensation set fabtbve, each non-employee director receives a sordionary annual grant of a non-qualified
option for the purchase of 6,000 shares of the Gamls common stock. The option is granted in cotioeavith our Annual Meeting of
Shareholders, vests over a one year period, andrhasercise price equal to the fair market vafuf® stock on the grant date.

II. Executive Officer Compensation. The following table sets forth the current baskauges and the fiscal 2008 performance bonusesdeo
to the individuals who the Company expects to 8&lamed Executive Officers for 2008.

Executive Officer Current Salary Fiscal 2008 Bonus Amour
Robert A. Frist, Jr $210,00( $-0-
Arthur E. Newmar $210,00( $-0-
J. Edward Pearsc $215,00( $-0-
Kevin P. C Hara $200,00( $-0-
Gerard M. Hayden, J $205,00( $-0-
Jeffrey S. Doste $205,00( $-0-

The Named Executive Officers also participatthe Company’s 2009 Incremental Net Income Ingerilan and will continue to be
eligible to receive long-term incentive awards pargt to the Company’s shareholder approved equigritive plans. The material terms of the
2009 Incremental Net Income Incentive Plan incltidieed bonuses as a percentage of base salarygafigim a minimum payout of
2.6 percent for exceeding the Company’s budgeteéhneme for 2009, with incremental payouts for ilebme performance above the
minimum level, and a maximum payout of 35 perceniniet income performance significantly higher ttiza minimum payout level.

[ll. Additional Information . The foregoing information is summary in naturedfional information regarding Director and Nant&xkcutive
Officer compensation will be contained in our prestgtement for the 2009 Annual Meeting of Sharedaidhat we will file with the Securities
and Exchange Commission within 120 days of theddrile fiscal year to which this report relates.



EXHIBIT 21.1

SUBSIDIARIES OF HEALTHSTREAM, INC.

State or Othe
Jurisdiction of
Incorporation ol

Names Under Which We Do Busine Organizatior
Education Design, Inc Tennesse
Data Management & Research, | Tennesse
The Jackson Organization, Research Consultants Maryland
HealthStream Acquisition I, Ini Tennesse

HealthStream Acquisition II, Int Tennesse



EXHIBIT 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTIN&GRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference irRbgistration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-3744@&pgpeng to the (1) HealthStream, Inc.
1994 Employee Stock Option Plan; and (2) Healttg#®trdnc. 2000 Stock Incentive Plan; of our repated March 23, 2009, with respect to
the consolidated financial statements of Healtlg®trenc. included in this Annual Report (Form 10%k&0) the year ended December 31, 2008.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Nashville, Tennesse
March 23, 2009



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, Robert A. Frist, Jr., certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of HealthStream, Inc

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not comaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtéde a material fact necessary to ir
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeer which such statements were made, not misigadth respect to the period covered
by this report

. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsodimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material respe
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, theopks presented in this repo

. The registrant’s other certifying officer andréaesponsible for establishing and maintainingldsure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iateinal control over financial reporting (as defihin Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f)
and 15+15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedoites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duritg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financiglarting, or caused such internal control over faiahreporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggatite reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallymedeaccounting principles;

c¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragisslosure controls and procedures and presentidsineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proes) as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the itegi’s internal control over financial reportirttat occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrantourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuyabm® that has materially affected, or is reasopdikély
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal trmhover financial reporting; and

5. The registrar's other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdzon our most recent evaluation of internal @miver financial reporting

to the registrar's auditors and the audit committee of the regit' s board of directors (or persons performing thewedent functions)

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regidfsaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalwveanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: March 27, 200¢ /s/ ROBERTA. FRIST, R.

Robert A. Frist, Jr.
Chief Executive Officer



EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, Gerard M. Hayden, Jr., certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of HealthStream, Inc

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtajnuntrue statement of a material fact or ométéde a material fact necessary to i
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeer which such statements were made, not misigadth respect to the period covered
by this report

. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsofimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material respe
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegoks presented in this repao

. The registrar's other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contasld procedures (as defin
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iatednal control over financial reporting (as definin Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f)
and 15+15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedaoites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duritg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financiglaing, or caused such internal control over foahreporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggatite reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallygedeaccounting principles;

c¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragisslosure controls and procedures and presentidsineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and prores) as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig’s internal control over financial reportirftat occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registramtourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuyadbm® that has materially affected, or is reasondikely
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal trmhover financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiovernal control over financial reporting,

to the registrar's auditors and the audit committee of the regit' s board of directors (or persons performing thevedent functions)

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisisability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaveanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: March 27, 2009 /s/ GERARD M. HAYDEN, <(R.

Gerard M. Hayden, Jt
Chief Financial Officer



EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of HealthStrednc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the yeadeng December 31, 2008, as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ortéte hereof (the “Report”), Robert A. Frist, Jhi€ Executive Officer of the Company
certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 81350, as adopteduant to 8906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 20,

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof1934; anc

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly gnets, in all material respects, the financial ctodiand results of operations of 1
Company.

/s/ ROBERT A. FRIST, (R.
Robert A. Frist, Jr.
Chief Executive Officer
March 27, 2009




EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of HealthStrednc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the yeadeng December 31, 2008, as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ordéte hereof (the “Report§;erard M. Hayden, Jr., Chief Financial Officer log tCompan
certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopteduant to 8906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 20&:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefiction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly pets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of 1
Company.

/s/ GERARD M. HAYDEN, (R.
Gerard M. Hayden, Jt
Chief Financial Officer
March 27, 2009




